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THE COMPANY




HISTORY

In the scope of reinforcing our respective imprint in the regional market and in the United Arab Emirates, United
Insurance Company and Fidelity Assurance and Reinsurance SARL celebrated a newfound identity as Fidelity United,
originated from the recent partnership between both companies in November 2018. Fidelity United is one of the
pioneering insurance companies registered in 1976, celebrating its 45th anniversary in 2021.

The rebranding presents Fidelity United as being a complete insurance solutions company, providing distinguished
product categories and offering top-notch service to our customers and partners, available in the present market.

The firm begins with understanding the corporate and individual client’s needs by providing tailored solutions, n cognition
to keep up with the ever-changing market trends. The company focuses on making its new brand identity a preferred
choice of insurance solutions in the region, reflecting strongly on its core values of transparency and responsibility.

Having embraced the company’s slogan, ‘#BeConfident’, the experienced professionals are committed to achieve
superior and sustainable profitable growth. Their approach is to provide bespoke solutions and a unique bran
experience, by adopting effective risk management and operating in an ethical and professional manner. Jhe
operational business model followed within the company since its rebirth, empowers stakeholders and pagfers,
optimizes company performance, and capitalizes on the passion, knowledge, and expertise of its employees.

VISION
To become the Home of Insurance

MISSION
To create a business model that empowers our stakeholders, optimizes our performan#e by way of innovation and
capitalizes on the passion, knowledge, and expertise of our employees.




MESSAGE FROM
THE CAPTAIN




| am pleased to present our Sustainability
Report, a testament to our unwavering
commitment to environmental responsibility,
social progress, and ethical governance. At
Fidelity United, we recognize the pivotal role
the insurance industry plays in shaping a
sustainable future in the United Arab
Emirates, and we take pride in our role as
responsible stewards of both financial and
environmental well-being.

In this report, you will find a comprehensive
overview of our environmental initiatives.
From adopting eco-friendly practices in our
operations to investing in renewable energy
sources, we are dedicated to minimizing our
ecological footprint. We are actively working
towards aligning our business strategies
with global sustainability goals, fostering a
resilient and environmentally conscious
future.

Our commitment to social impact is
embedded in our corporate values. Through
partnerships, community engagement, and
philanthropic endeavors, we strive to make
a positive difference in the communities we
serve. This report outlines our initiatives to
support education, healthcare, and other

critical areas, underscoring our dedication to
being a responsible corporate citizen.

A cornerstone of our sustainability efforts is
our commitment to ethical governance.
Transparent and accountable business
practices are integral to our corporate
identity. This report provides insights into
our governance structure, highlighting our
commitment to fairness, integrity, and
compliance with the highest standards. We
believe that ethical governance is not just a
choice but a fundamental obligation to our
stakeholders.

As we celebrate our achievements outlined
in this report, we recognize that the journey
towards sustainability is collaborative. We
appreciate the dedication of every member
of the Fidelity United family, and we
encourage ongoing dialogue  and
collaboration ~ with  our  stakeholders.
Together, we can create a lasting impact on
our planet and society.

Fidelity United has been resilient to the
ever-changing global health and economic
challenges, which is a credit to our staffs our

clients and partners who have contid (o)
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support us, and our leadership team who
have been steadfast and dedicated.

Although we are making good progress in
meeting our annual sustainability targets
and long-term goals, we continue to
strengthen our focus on targets where we
want to aim higher: increasing diversity in
our workforce, improving employee and
client well-being and training, focusing on
engagement, and quantifying the
sustainability
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SUSTAINABILITY
STRATEGY AND
COMMITMENT




Sustainability at the corporate level has evolved from the
notion of Corporate Social Responsibility - mainly focused
on corporate philanthropy. k is becoming a strategic priority
for companies to seize opportunities, reduce costs and to
build competitive edge. Sustainability management is the
integrated management of economic, social, and
environmental performance for the purpose of maximizing
benefits for all stakeholder groups. It helps companies
identify social, environmental, economic and governance
risks and opportunities that increasingly impact the success
of companies through driving performance gains and
increasing competitiveness. During the last few years, UAE
has deployed extensive efforts towards driving sustainability
forward in the country under the framework of UAE Vision
2021 and in alignment with the UN Sustainable
Development Goals (SDG). The vision is aimed at ensuring a
sustainable environment and infrastructure.

Our Way Forward

The core business of Fidelity United is to provide a safety net
to individuals and companies to empower them to achieve
their desired goals. Our corporate responsibility approach
and commitments guide our operating model to respond to
environmental, social and governance challenges and drive
continuous improvement.

Our ESG Strategy is focused on embedding systainability in
all business activities and using our rolegfas an insurer,
investor and employer to manage thg’risks posed by
various challenges and to foster a mgfe inclusive society.
We at Fidelity United, are committgd to demonstrate our
ESG goals to add value for key gtakeholders, customers,
shareholders and employeesf We aim to create an
environmentally conscious wérkplace through sustainable
choices and initiatives. We#ant our team to believe in our
vision and practice enyjfonmentally friendly habits in the
office to achieve our gdals in the sustainability journey.




HIGHLIGHTS
OF 2024
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ENVIRONMENT
POLICY STATEMENT
INITIATIVES AND GOALS




Environmental Operations:

Environmental operations are an essential component of
overall ESG management. By integrating environmental
considerations into our operations, we tend to improve
operational efficiency, enhance our reputation, and
contribute to the transition to a more sustainable
economy.

We have implemented practices and strategies to
address and manage our environmental impact. We
focus specifically on:

» how to reduce energy consumption and increase
energy efficiency

reduce water usage

reduce plastic

comply with environmental regulations and standards
adopt voluntary initiatives o demonstrate
environmental responsibility

Environmental Oversight
Message from the Board
With a robust ESG program established within our
company's management structure, we, at the board level,
ensure thorough oversight and evaluation of ESG matters.

We entrust management to proficiently navigate the
constantly shifting risk landscape and give relevant
metrics to the board.

Our focus lies in ensuring that the company's strategy,
business model, and operations align with material risks,

promising results, and the creation of long-term value.

Recognizing the increasingly evident risks posed by
environmental factors, we grasp their implications on
business strategy and performance, acknowledging
their potential to fill various sides of our operations.

We remain well informed about any environmental
oversight issues, what is the evaluation of the risks that
arise from ESG factors and what are decisions the
company decides to take towards them.

Message from the Management

Because ESG strategy should align with business strategy
and focus on material risks and business drivers, we are
fully aware on how those risks and opportunities are being
addressed Management has delegated comprehen51

the smooth launch of our ESG strategy.

Given the recurrent nature of ESG discussigis and the
increasing expectations for management j
ESG oversight, we have established an appfopriate rhythm.
We consistently convey ESG stra#egy updates to
management and keep the board infgfmed about progress
and challenges encountered.

The ESG committee ensures ghe execution of goals and the
seamless integration of mj#estones into the plan. With the
right personnel and progesses in place, we foster a culture
that embraces ESG agfivities.



Environmental

We are committed to reducing our paper use and encourage our business partners and employees to go paperless
through various go digital initiatives.

2024

03
313.19 Gallons
of Oil Saved

02

5719 Gallons
13.61 Offset of Water Saved

tCO2e
13.61 Number '
of Trees Saved Q é
0 1 i Avera inti |
. ge Printing per Employee
817 Kg Weight Paper saved: per Month
of Recycled Paper Printing Prior Year 350
Printing Current Year 278

Decrease in Printing

0,
Per Employee Per Month 20%




SOCIAL - POLICY
ATEMENT,INITIATIVES
AND GOALS




During 2024, Fidelity United has been dedicated in fostering a
culture of well-being within our workplace through a series
of engaging wellness sessions. These sessions were
thoughtfully curated to address various aspects of our
employees’ holistic health, providing valuable insights and
practical tools to enhance their overall well-being.

' — ———— #BECONFIDENT
i FIDELITY UNITED, HOME OF INSURANCE

M|
Wellness Clinic Day

I
|
|
|
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The wellness sessions conducted underscore our I =
commitment to creating a workplace that prioritizes the
well-being of our employees. We believe that a healthy and |
happy workforce is not only more productive but also more I
engaged and resilient. As we continue to invest in the holistic
wellness of our team, we look forward to witnessing the |
positive impact on both individuals and our collective work l
environment.
|
|
|
I
|
|
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We organized a comprehensive wellness clinic for
employees, focusing on preventive healthcare and overall
well-being. The clinic offered a range of essential health
services, including gynecology consultations, vision
screening, BMI checks, nutritional guidance, dental check-
ups, and dentist consultations. Employees had the
opportunity to receive expert advice, identify potential
health concerns early, and take proactive steps toward a
healthier lifestyle. This initiative reflects our commitment
to supporting employee health and fostering a workplace
culture that prioritizes well-being.
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BLOOD DONATION
‘Your blood donation can save a life’. WORLD BLOOD

As part of our continued efforts towards people happiness and a healthier D o N o R
community, Fidelity United, in association with Dubai Health Authority, organized a — —
blood donation drive. Enthusiastic employees from all Fidelity United branches,
colleagues from the industry and good samaritans from surrounding offices came
together, taking another step towards their own well-being and building a robust
society.




COMMUNITY SERVICE

During the blessed month of Ramadan, Fidelity United in
association with Model Service Society celebrated the joy of
giving back to our community members at the DIP Labor
Camp.

Fidelity United family joined hands to organize, pack and
deliver essential food items to more than 150 families in need,
across UAE. We are humbled by this initiative and grateful to
be able to bring a smile on so many faces.

#BECONFIDENT

Iftar Meal Distribution with
Fidelity United

initiative
community

Our team recently conducted a beach cleani
to promote environmental sustainability a
responsibility. Volunteers worked togegher to collect
plastic waste, debris, and other pollftants, ensuring a
cleaner and safer shoreline. This effort not only helped
protect marine life but also rai awareness about the
importance of reducing pollygfon. The initiative was a
step towards preserving r natural environment for
future generations.




Gender pay ratio and diversity

The prime objective of Fidelity United equal opportunity
policy is to ensure that all employees are treated fairly
and consistently in all aspects of employment. This
includes activities relating to recruitment, training and
development, performance management and the
day-to-day management of its employees.

Fidelity United adopts a grading structure for making decisions
about employee pay and progression that are fair for all employees.
The jobs are placed in order of hierarchy and arranged into a series
of grades.

Fidelity United ensure that we are recruiting talented men and
women based on the objective criteria. The decisions about
career development opportunities are made and we feel
confident that appointments are made on merit and not on
personal preference or bias.

We ensure performance reviews are conducted against the
guarantee that the development and progression of talented
employees is not limited by their gender.

Employee Turnover

The employee turnover rate within the organization serves as a
key indicator of workforce stability and organizational health. By
analyzing trends in employee turnover, we gain valuable insights
into areas such as employee satisfaction, retention strategies, and
overall organizational effectiveness. Our commitment to
understanding and addressing employee turnover aligns with our
governance principles, ensuring that we maintain a resilient and
engaged workforce capable of driving sustainable growth and
SUCCesS.

At Fidelity United, monitoring employee turnover serves as a
critical component of our governance framework. Understanding
the patterns and reasons behind employee departures enables us
to implement effective retention strategies and maintain a stable
and engaged workforce. By prioritizing employee satisfaction and
retention, we uphold our commitment to fostering a resilient
organizational culture conducive to long-term success and
sustainability.

Non-Discrimination

Fidelity United upholds the principle that all employees are entitled
to work in an environment devoid of harassment or
discrimination. Regardless of sex, gender, race, religious beliefs or
creed, political opinion, marital status, disability, age, or nationality,
we are steadfast in our commitment in fostering an inclusive and
respectful workplace.

We are dedicated to maintaining a professional and equitable
environment for both our employees and customers. I is our fir,
commitment to ensure that every individual, whether engaged’in
business with the company or a member of our workfogé€e, is
always treated with dignity and respect.

Global Health and Safety

We are deeply committed to ensuring the hegith and safety of our
employees, customers, and communities yforldwide. We adhere
to rigorous global health and safety stangérds in all aspects of our
operations to create a secure working gnvironment. Our proactive
measures and strict adherence tg#fegulations aim to prevent
accidents and promote well-bein e actively support initiatives
addressing public health challep8es and prioritize the safety of all
stakeholders.



Child and Forced Labour

Fidelity United acknowledges the widespread prevalence of
child and forced labor globally. In alignment with our core
value of treating all individuals with dignity and respect, we
have instituted the following principles:

1. All applicants must meet a minimum age
requirement of 18 years. The verification of age will be
conducted by the Human Capital Department through
official documents such as passport copies, ensuring
compliance with this criterion for employment.

2. We categorically condemn the exploitation of
children, their involvement in hazardous labor, and any
instances of physical punishment, abuse, or involuntary
servitude of workers. Fidelity United advocates for
temporary workplace internship and apprenticeship
education programs for young individuals, alongside
customary seasonal employment, under close
supervision. These arrangements are contingent upon
safeguarding the moral, safety, health, and mandatory
education of participants.

By steadfastly adhering to these principles, we
underscore our commitment to upholding ethical labor
practices and ensuring that child and forced labor find
no place within our operations or supply chain. Fidelity
United remains resolute in continuously enhancing our
protocols to eradicate these practices entirely.

Human Rights
We firmly believe that respecting human rights is a shared
responsibility that extends to every individual and entity. It is

incumbent upon us to uphold this responsibility by avoiding
actions that cause or contribute to adverse human rights
impacts and by addressing such impacts swiftly and
effectively when they occur.

We are committed to taking proactive measures to prevent
or mitigate adverse human rights impacts that may be
directly linked to our operations or services, as well as those
resulting from our business relationships. Even if we have not
directly contributed to these impacts, we recognize our
obligation to seek to prevent or address them.

By adhering to these principles, we demonstrate our
commitment to promoting and protecting human rights in all
aspects of our operations and business relationships. At
Fidelity United, we embrace our role in advancing human
rights and strive to continuously improve our practices to
uphold this fundamental value.”

Nationalization

Fidelity United strongly supports the UAE gove
vision and Emiratization initiatives. We are co
providing opportunities for Emiratis to develop
build meaningful careers within our or

Community Investment
Fidelity United strongly believes jf investing the growth of the
community. In FY 2024, we e contributed towards beach
cleanup drives and conducted various other programs
such as Blood Donationgrives and EID Distribuitions.




GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE AND
POLICY STATEMENT




Board Diversity b. Management Level

Our board of directors now proudly boasts gender The governance structure at Management Level is
diversity, reflecting our commitment in fostering a created by keeping in mind the strong growth of the
dynamic and balanced leadership team. company, our future aspirations and the necessary risk

management needed to operate the company.

Diverse perspectives drive innovation and excellence,
and we believe that by championing gender diversity, we
enhance our ability to navigate challenges and seize
opportunities. This achievement is a testament of our
dedication to equality, and we look forward to the
continued positive impact this diversity will bring to our
organization.

Governance Structure

a. Board Level
The Board of Fidelity United has structured various

committees to manage and look after the affairs of the
company. These are designed considering the most
appropriate governance structure with the size of the
company.




Governance

Our governance structure is created by keeping in mind the strong growth of the company and our future aspirations.
The structure is split into two main accountabilities defined at Board and Management level.

Audit Committee

0 2 Risk/AML Committee

0 3 Investment Committee

Remuneration Committee



Executive Committee

Technical Review

Monthly Business Review

Quarterly Business Review

Credit Committee
l 0 6 Risk Committee
[}

Reinsurance Business Review

MANAGEMENT
LEVEL

Technological and Digitalization Review

Research and Development

Enterprise Risk Management
11 Environmental, Social and Govemance Committee

Employee Engagement Committee




Ethics and Prevention of Corruption

We maintain unwavering commitment to ethical conduct and
the prevention of corruption in al aspects of our operations. Our
core values dictate integrity, transparency, and accountability,
which guide our actions and decisions.

We firmly uphold ethical standards, adhering to laws and
regulations governing anti-corruption measures. Our policies and
procedures are designed to prevent bribery, extortion, and any
form of corrupt practices, both within our organization and n our
interactions with external stakeholders.

We provide ongoing training and awareness programs to
ensure that all employees understand their responsibilities in
upholding ethical standards and preventing corruption.
Additionally, we encourage the reporting of any suspected
unethical behavior through our confidential whistleblower hotline.
Fidelity United is dedicated to conducting business with honesty,
fairness, and integrity. We believe that by maintaining a culture of
ethics and transparency, we not only protect our reputation but
also contribute to the trust and confidence of our stakeholders
and the communities we serve.

Data Privacy

Fidelity United respects its customers’ fundamental right to
privacy, and we commit to take great care in using, disclosing,
processing and safeguarding their Personal Data.

Fidelity United has developed a Data Protection Policy that aims
to ensure that we adopt and observe appropriate standards for
personal data protection in compliance with the applicable Local
Data Protection Regulations.

While our Data Protection sets out the general principles that
govern the collection, use, and disclosure of our customers’

personal information, the below darify, how we protect personal
information.

The integrity, confidentiality, and security of the personal
information are important to us. That’s why we strictly enforce
our Data Protection Policy within Fidelity United and have
implemented technical, organizational, and physical security
measures that are designed to protect the Personal Data. from
unauthorized or fraudulent access, alteration, disclosure, misuse,
and other unlawful activities.

We also put in effect the following safeguards:

We have a separate data protection policy.

All our Contracts with the vendors includes a data protection

clause.

We keep and protect the information using a secured server

behind a firewall, encryption, and security controls.

We make sure to have Consent in place while involved with

personal data.

We keep information only for as long as required by Law gAd

necessary for us @) provide the products and servicegfthat

you avail from us, (b) for our legitimate business pyfposes,

and (c) to comply with applicable pertinengftaws and

regulations.

We restrict access to the information only/to authorized

personnel who are trained to handle thg”information with

strict confidentiality and only for the requffed purpose.

We undergo regular audits and gi8orous testing of our

infrastructure’s security protocgl§ to ensure the data is

always protected.

We promptly notify the ¢gficerned data subject, when

sensitive personal infggfnation that may, under the

circumstances, be usgéd to enable identity fraud are

reasonably believg@l to have been acquired by an
[19 Norized pe .



Sustainable Reporting

Fidelity United publishes integrated report on annual
basis comprising of:

a.Board Report,

b. Financial Statements,

c. Corporate Governance Report, and

d. Sustainability Report

These reports are prepared keeping in mind the
regulatory requirement and best practices across the
region.



STAKEHOLDER
ENGAGEMENT




Employees

At Fidelity United, we believe our employees are the
cornerstone of the company. Attracting, developing and
retaining the right talent for the right job is the foundation
on which great businesses thrive. We have driven
initiatives to ensure that our employees are happy,
healthy, and motivated to ensure a good experience for
our customers. Our dynamic and diverse company
culture advocates communication, transparency and
accentuates employee engagement. For this reason, we
have built a culture based on diversity, collaboration,
innovation, challenges and growth - all the while
preserving work-life balance.

Our priorities are:

a. Employee Engagement

b. Diversity and Inclusion

c. Talent Management

d. Learning and Development
e.Reward and Recognition
f.Employee Wellbeing

g. Health and Safety




Regulators

In today’s ever-evolving world, debating whether to
incorporate sustainability into our business strategy is no
longer an option. We must work together with companies,
governments, and organizations to come up with the best
sustainable solutions and drive positive change, by doing the
following:

a. Communicate regularly with the regulators

b. Participate in social events

c. Contribute to donations and volunteering.

Industry Management

Team of Fidelity United is part of various committees in
the Insurance Association. The team is very well
represented in the Finance Committee, Motor Committee,
Legal Committee and Higher Technical Committee, where
they play a significant role in proposing evolving
improvements within the industry.

Board Members and
rategy and performance
make informed decisions
ur businesses to understand
communications are through
and Annual General Meetings of

Fidelity United engages with t
shareholders t communicate i

on sustainability, enabling the
about their investments an
their expectations. The
Regular Board meeti
shareholders.




2025 OUTLOOK &
FUTURE GOALS




It is increasingly evident that continuous commercial success is linked with our commitment to sustainable development.
It is imperative for Fidelity United to encapsulate it in a clear purpose to achieve full benefits. The purpose should be
compatible with the Sustainable Development Goals and needs to shape the way the business is both designed and run.
A balance needs to be continually maintained between emphasis on short term priorities and long term commitments,
whilst understanding our stakeholder expectations.

Our commitment for the years 2025 - 2027 is to:

Environmental
a. Eliminate use of plastic cutleries
b.Reduce by reusing
c.More inclined in supporting companies with a history of sustainability/green vendors
d. Manufacture products from recycled plastic
e.Encourage sustainable transportation (shuttle bus or encourage carpooling)
f.Adopt green marketing practices (green labeling)
g. Conduct awareness sessions for our employees on green technology




Social
a. Wellness webinars
b. Wellness programs
c. Cleaning drives
d. Blood donation drive
e.Share our earnings
f.Earth hour
g. Community Service



Proposed contribution towards our initiatives:

r ]

Initiatives Year 2024 Year 2025 Year 2026

Cleaning drive (No./year) 1 2 2

Blood donation (% increase from previous year) 5% 5% 5%

Earth hour 12% 14% 16%

Save the trees (say no to papers) 10% 10% 10%

Save the ocean (say no to plastic) 2% 2% 2%

Community Service 2 2 2

Wellness Program 1 2 2 /
Governance ..:';

a. Strengthen the review and audit process to
ensure best practices in respect of controls
are in place for sustainable bottom line.

b. Enhance the effectiveness of ERM structure
in line with the growth of the company.

c. Maintain the solvency ratio and review
the appetite of the company at regular intervals.

d. Working with strong rated Reinsurers.
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Statement of the procedures taken to complete the corporate governance system during 2024.

The Board of Directors of United Fidelity Insurance Company (hereafter referred to as “Fidelity United”)
strongly upholds robust corporate governance principles. Recognizing corporate governance as
essential for achieving sustainable long-term growth and prosperity, the Board is dedicated to
enhancing shareholder value while considering the interests of stakeholders such as employees,
clients, suppliers, business partners, and the broader community where Fidelity United operates.

Corporate governance is not merely a destination but an ongoing journey towards business
development and excellence. In line with this, the Board has consistently upgraded corporate
governance standards at Fidelity United throughout 2024, adhering to the Central Bank Corporate
Governance Regulation for Insurance Companies and in line with the institutional and other regulatory
requirements prescribed by the Securities and Commodities Authority, including in particular the
Authority's Chairman of the Board of Directors' Resolution No. (3/R.M) of 2020 Concerning Corporate
Discipline and Governance Standards of Public Joint Stock Companies. The senior management
collaborate to fortify the internal control system, recognized as pivotal within the corporate governance
framework of Fidelity United

Fidelity United has established a corporate governance framework to guide its operations internally and
externally, ensuring the existence of a precise framework that delineates the responsibilities and duties
of the board of directors and executive management while safeguarding the rights of all stakeholders
involved.

The main components of the “Corporate Governance framework” embedded with Fidelity United consists of
the following:

Corporate Governance Framework at Fidelity United
Board of Directors Board Committees Internal Control Functions
0 Active 0 Audit Committee 0O Compliance
O Independent [0 Remuneration and Nomination Committee O Risk Management
0 Non-executive 0 Investment Committee O Internal Audit
0 Risk Committee 0 Actuary
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Statement of the ownership and transactions of board members, their spouses, and their children
during 2024

The members of the Board of Directors, their spouses, and their children did not deal in the company's
securities during 2024.

Shares

Position/ owned as Total sale uTrg:ls:alse
Relationship of transaction t:gnsaction
31/12/2024
Chairman of
1 gﬁ‘:l‘;“;a;h Ahﬁ;‘r‘:f’as“ Ahmed | g rd of 9.38% N/A N/A
Directors
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Board of Directors formation and related information

Category
(executive, non-

executive and
independent),

The period he spent as a
member of the company’s
board of directors from the
date of his first election

Their memberships [Their positions in any

and positions in any other important

other joint stock
companies

regulatory, governmental
or commercial positions

Mr. Nawwaf Non-Independent Since 2002 N/A N/A

Ghubash Ahmed Non-executive

Ghubash Almerri

Mr. Ricardo Non-Independent Since 2017 N/A IN/A

Maurice Suleiman | Non-executive

Mr. Khalid Rashid | Non-Independent Re-elected in 2017 N/A N/A

Humaid Al Non-executive

Mazrouei

Mr. Mohamed Non-Independent Since 2017 RAK Properties N/A

Ghobash Ahmed Non-executive

Ghobash Al Marri (Board Member)

Mr. Nadeem Independent Since 2017 N/A N/A

Ahmed Irfan )

Ahmed Non-executive

Mrs. Lara Sleiman | Non-Independent Since 2023 N/A N/A
Non-executive

Mr. Fardan Ali Al Independent Since 2023 IN/A N/A

Fardan Non-executive
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Board of Directors experience and qualifications.
Mr. Nawwaf Ghubash Ahmed Ghubash AlMerri (Chairman)

Mr. Nawwaf currently holds the position of the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company. Mr. Nawwaf
Ghobash is a member of the Board of Directors of the Company since 2002. He holds a bachelor’s degree in
business administration from the University of the United Arab Emirates - Al Ain. In the past years, he was
nominated a delegated member of the company’s board of directors: Currently, he holds the following positions:

- Member of the Board of Directors of Dubai Refreshments Company from March 2023 to date.

- Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors of Ghobash Trade and Investment Ltd. from 1999 to date.

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of SEDCO - Jordan - Dubai from 2021 to date.

- Member of the Board of Directors of Emitac since 1999 to date.

- Member of the Board of Directors and member of the Executive Committee of the Sahara Center in Sharjah
from 2000 to date.

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of RAK Pharma - Bangladesh between 2015 and November 2018.

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of the United Fidelity Insurance Company from 2017 to date.

- Member of the Board of Directors of the United Fidelity Insurance Company from 2002 until 2017.

- Managing Director of United Fidelity Insurance Company from 2011 until 2017.

- The second vice president and member of the board of directors of the Ras Al Khaimah Chamber of
Commerce and Industry from January 2007 until December 2009.

- Member of the Board of Directors of Gulf Pharmaceutical Industries Company (Julphar) in Ras Al-Khaimah
between 2005 and 2017.

- Member of the Board of Directors of Ras Al Khaimah Real Estate Company from 2005 until 2012.

- Member of the Board of Directors of Ras Al Khaimah Real Estate Company since 2018 till 2020.

- Member of the Board of Directors of the Emirates Insurance Association from January 2010 until 2013.

- Member of the Board of Directors of Al-Anwar Holding Company (PSC) in the Sultanate of Oman from 2003
until 2014.

- Member of the Board of Directors of Addax Bank in the Kingdom of Bahrain from January 2010 until 2012.

Mr. Ricardo Maurice Suleiman (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Ricardo currently holds the position of the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors. He holds an ISM
certificate since 1968 from the International School of Marketing, United States of America, and an international
Diploma in Marketing.

Page | 5



He held the following positions:

- Sales Representative at NCR Corporation, 1964.

- Sales Executive at American International Underwriters AlU, 1968.

- Sales Manager at Fidelity Assurance and Reinsurance, 1969. He acquired the Company after 25 years.

- Associate Agency Manager at the American Life Insurance (ALICO) as of 1971.

- Chairman of Fidelity Assurance & Reinsurance Company SAL, 1994.

- Shareholder of Rymco - General Agents of GMC, Nissan and Infiniti motors in Lebanon.

- Was elected by the General Assembly held on 02/08/2017 as a member of the Board of Directors of United
Fidelity Insurance Company.

Mr. Khalid Rashid Humaid Al Mazrouei (Member of the Board)

Mr. Khalid holds a Bachelor's degree from Emirates University in Accounting and Information Systems. He
worked for 5 years for HSBC Bank and another five years for the Department of Economic Development -
Government of Dubai. He currently holds the following positions:

- Member of the Board of Directors of Al-Bahri and Al Mazroui Company.

- Member of the Board of Directors of Dubai Tourism and Travel Group.

- General Manager of Gulf Wings Travel.

- Businessman and owner of private companies.

- Re-elected by the General Assembly on 02/08/2017 as a member of the Board of Directors of the United
Fidelity Insurance Company.

Mr. Mohamed Ghobash Ahmed Ghobash Al Marri (Board Member)

He holds a higher diploma in Business Administration from the Higher Colleges of Technology (1993 - 1999) in
the Emirate of Ras Al Khaimah. He completed several banking, administrative and executive courses at
Emirates Institute of Banking, Etisalat Academy, and the National Bank of Abu Dhabi. He held the following
positions:

- Stock Trading Manager - Abu Dhabi Financial Services, 2009-2011

- Vice President - Emirates Football Club - Ras Al Khaimah 2011-2012

- Relationship Manager - National Bank of Abu Dhabi for Private Banking Services 2011-2014

- BOD member in RAK Properties from 03/04/2021

- He was elected for the first time by the General Assembly held on 02/08/2017 as a member of the Board of
Directors of United Fidelity Insurance Company.

Page | 6



Mr. Nadeem Ahmed Irfan Ahmed (Board Member)

He was first elected by the General Assembly in 2017 as a member of the Board of Directors of United Fidelity
Insurance Company. He holds a master's degree in business administration from the University of Aligarh,
India, and has held the following positions:

- Since 2012 - to date, Investment Manager - Ghobash Trading and Investment Company.

- Since 1986 - 1992: Finance Executive at Pradeshiya Industrial & Investment Corporation of U.P. Ltd.

- Since 1992-1995: Head of Business at Sterling Securities Limited, Delhi.

- Since 1995 - 1998: Vice President of Fortess Financial Services Limited, Mumbai.

- From March 1999 to December 2002: Manager at Abu Dhabi Investment Company (ADIC), "Invest AD".

- From January 2003 to February 2008: Director of HSBC Private Equity Middle East (HSBCPE).

- From March 2008 to April 2012: Investment Partner in BNP Paribas Frist Private Equity Fund, Bahrain.

- Since 2008: Member of the Board of Directors of BNP Paribas Frist, Private Equity Fund in and a member of
the Board of Directors of the Fund Company and the Fund Manager since its incorporation.

- May 2012 to August 2016: Member of the Board of Directors of Private Portfolio Companies of BNP Paribas
Frist, Private Equity Fund.

- December 2012 to date: Group Investment Director - Ghobash Trading & Investment Limited.

Ms. Lara Sleiman

She was first elected by the General Assembly in 2023 as a member of the Board of Directors of United Fidelity
Insurance Company. She holds a master's degree in business administration, and B.A., Business Marketing
from Lebanese American University, and has held the following positions:

- Board Member and Vice President — Administration and Projects Development - Fidelity Assurance &
Reinsurance Co. SAL (Lebanon) 2018 — Present

- Vice President — Human Resources and Administration - Fidelity Assurance & Reinsurance Co. SAL
(Lebanon) 2009 - 2017

- Human Resources Manager - Fidelity Assurance & Reinsurance Co. SAL (Lebanon) 2004 — 2008
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Mr. Fardan Ali Al Fardan

He was first elected by the General Assembly in 2023 as a member of the Board of Directors of United Fidelity
Insurance Company. He holds a Certified Diploma in Real Estate Management from Dubai Real Estate
Institute, and Bachelor of Arts in Business Administration, The American University in Dubai, and has held the
following positions:

- Board member - Al Fardan Group 2017 — Present.

- Senior Executive Officer and Managing Director -Embassy Capital Limited 2020- Present.
- Head of hospitality - Equitativa Limited 2017 — 2020

- Senior Investment Manager, Real Estate - Emirates NBD 2011- 2017

Female representation percentage in the Board of Directors for 2024

Female representation in the Board of Directors is one female out of seven Board Members.

Number percentage
Board members - Male 6 86%
Board members - Female 1 14%

Remunerations paid to the board members for the year 2023:
None
Remuneration proposed for the Board for 2024:

None
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Details of the allowances received by Board Members for attending the Board committees’ meetings for
the fiscal year of 2024.

Investment Committee

Allowance value Meetings number
1 |Mr. Khalid Mazrouei 20,000 4
2  |Mr. Nadeem Arfan Ahmad 20,000 4
3  Mr. Mohamed Ghobash 20,000 &
4 Mr. Fardan Ali AlFardan 20,000 4

Audit Committee

Allowance value Meetings number

1 Mr. Nadeem Arfan Ahmad 60,000 8

2 Mr. Marwan Istambouly 25,000 8

3 Mr. Fardan Ali AlFardan 25,000 6

Remuneration Committee

Allowance value Meetings number
1 Mrs. Lara Sleiman 5000 1
2 ‘Mr. Mohamed Ghobash 5000 1
3 |Mr. Fardan Ali AIFardan 5000 1




Risk Committee

Allowance value Meetings number

Mr. Fardan Ali AlIFardan 20,000 6
2 Mr. Nadeem Arfan Ahmad 20,000 6
3 Mrs. Lara Sleiman 30,000 6

Details of the additional allowances, salaries, or fees received by a member of the Board of Directors,
other than committee attendance allowances, and their reasons.

Nadeem Ahmed Irfan Ahmed has been paid AED 80,000 on 2024 as investment incentive fees in return of his
support related to investment services provided to the Company during 2023.

Number of Board meetings held during the fiscal year 2024 and the relevant details

Board Meetings

Name of the board
member Meeting 1 = Meeting 2 Meeting 3 | Meeting 4 | Meeting 5 | Meeting 6 | Meeting 7| Meeting 8 |
024!23!04!2024]23!05)2024}14!08!2024}1 3/11/2024| 20/11/2024 |

Nawwaf Ghubash Ahmed Present Present Present Present Present Present Present Present
Ghubash Almerri

Ricardo Maurice Present Present Present Present Present Present Present Present
Suleiman

Khalid Rashid Humaid Al Present Present Present Present Present Present Present Present
Mazrouei

Mohamed Ghobash Present Present Present Present Present Present Present Present
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Ahmed Ghobash Al Marri

Nadeem Ahmed Irfan Present Present Present | Present | Present | Present | Present Present
Ahmed

Lara Sleiman Present Present Present | Present | Present | Present | Present Present
Fardan Ali Al Fardan Present Absent Present | Present | Present | Present | Present Present

Number of Board of Directors decisions passed during the fiscal year 2024, indicating their dates.
The board of directors passed 1 decision by circulation in 2024 dated 13/05/2024.

Audit Committee:

Chairman Acknowledgement of his responsibility for the Committee system, review of its work
mechanism and effectiveness

Mr. Nadeem Ahmad Irfan Ahmad, Audit Committee Chairman, herby acknowledges his responsibility for the
Committee system within the Company, reviewing its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.

Names of the Audit Committee Members, and their Competencies and Duties.

No. Name Capacity
1 Mr. Nadeem Ahmad Irfan Ahmad Chairman
2 Mr. Fardan Ali Al Fardan Member
3 Mr. Marwan Istamboli Member
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Tasks and functions of the Auditing Committee:

1) Develop and implement the contracting policy with the external auditor. Submit a report to the Board of
Directors identifying the issues that it considers important to take an action thereon, with
recommendations concerning the steps to be taken.

2) Follow-up and monitor the independence of the external auditor. Submit a report to the Board of Directors
specifying the issues that it considers important to take action thereon, with recommendations concerning
the steps to be taken.

3) Monitor the integrity of the Company's financial statements and reports (Annually, semi-annually and
quarterly), and observe them as part of its normal work during the year and after closing the accounts in
any quarterly period, with special focus on the following:

* Any changes in accounting policies and practices

» Highlight aspects subject to the Board of Directors' discretion

 Significant amendments resulting from the audit

= Assuming the Company's going concerns

 Adherence to the rules of incorporation, disclosure and other legal requirements related to the preparation
of financial reports.

4) Coordination with the Company's Management, Executive Management, Chief Financial Officer or the
manager responsible for the same tasks in the Company in order to -

5) perform its duties. The Committee shall have a meeting with the auditors of the Company at least once a
year. .

6) Consider any items that are deemed important and unusual or should be mentioned in such reports and
accounts, and shall give due attention to any matters raised by the

Company's Chief Financial Officer, the manager responsible for the same duties, the compliance officer or
the auditors.

7) Review the financial controls, internal controls and risk management systems of the Company.

8) Discuss the internal control system with the Management and ensure that it fuffills its duty to establish an
effective internal control system.

9) Consider the results of the main investigations conducted on the internal control matters, as assigned to it
by the Board of Directors or performed at the initiative of the Committee and the approval of the
Management.

10)Make sure effective coordination is in place between the internal auditors of the Company and the
external auditors. Ensure availability of the resources necessary for the internal audit body, and review
and control the effectiveness of that body.

Page | 12



11)Review the Company's financial and accounting policies and procedures.

12)Review the external auditor's letters, its action plan and any material queries submitted by the auditor to
the Executive Management regarding accounting records, financial accounts or control systems, and their
response and approval to the same.

13)Ensure that the Board of Directors responds in a timely manner to the clarifications and material issues
raised in the external auditor's letter.

14)Establish a reporting structure that enables Company's staff to report any potential irregularities in
financial reports, internal controls or other matters under complete confidentiality; and set the steps
necessary to ensure independent and fair investigations of such violations.

15)Monitor the extent to which the Company complies with the rules of professional conduct.

16)Ensure the application of the rules related to its functions and the powers entrusted to it by the Board of
Directors.

17)Submit reports to the Board of Directors on the matters listed in this item.

18)Consider of any other matters determined by the Board of Directors.

Number of meetings held by the Audit Committee during 2024

Audit Committee

Meeting 1 Meeting 2 Meeting 3 ‘Meeﬁng 4 ‘ Meeting 5‘ Meeting 6 ‘Meetl'ng 7 ‘ Meeting 8

Name of the

member 31/01/2024 = 13/03/2024 13!05/2024‘14!06/2024‘04/0712024‘06/08/2024|06f11/2024]10112/2024'
Nadeem Ahmed Present Present Present Present Present Present Present Present
Irfan Ahmed

Fardan Ali Al Present Regret Regret Present | Present | Present Present | Present
Fardan

Marwan Istamboli Present Present Present Present Present Present Present Present
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Annual Audit Committee report:

1. The Committee reviews key financial statement matters in its quarterly meetings, emphasizing disclosure
accuracy, reserves adequacy, related party transactions and insurance liability valuation. External Auditors and
Appointed Actuary are also present in all the Audit Committee meetings where financial information is
presented to the Audit Committee for review and approval.

2. The independence and effectiveness of the external audit process are evaluated through regular discussions
with the auditors during quarterly meetings. The committee follows a transparent process for appointing/
reappointing the external auditor, focusing on performance, independence, experience in the UAE Insurance
market and expertise of the key team members.

3. The tenure of the current external auditor (Grant Thornton) will conclude at the end of Q1 2025. The
committee is currently in the process of appointing new auditors and evaluating potential firms to ensure they
meet the company’s standards for independence, expertise, experience and audit quality.

4. There were no non-audit services provided by the external auditor in 2024.

5. The Committee has placed measures to address deficiencies identified in internal control and risk
management, thereby strengthening Fidelity United's overall internal control and risk management framework.

6. Audit reports are present on a regular basis from the internal audit team to the Audit Committee. The AC
during its meeting thoroughly reviews and evaluates all key observations in the Audit Committee meeting.

7. The Committee reviews related party transactions in quarterly meetings and seeks confirmation from external
auditors and management to ensure compliance with regulatory requirements.

Nominations and Remuneration Committee:

Chairman Acknowledgement of his responsibility for the Committee system, review of its work
mechanism and effectiveness

Ms. Lara Sleiman, Nomination and Remuneration Committee Chairman, herby acknowledges her
responsibility for the Committee system within the Company, reviewing its work mechanism and ensuring its
effectiveness.
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Names of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee, and their Competencies and Duties.

No. Name Capacity
1 Ms. Lara Sleiman Chairman
2 Mr. Fardan Ali Al Fardan Member
3 Mr. Mohamed Ghobash Ahmed Ghobash Al Marri Member

Statement of the Committee's function and the tasks assigned to it:

The Committee shall carry out all the prescribed functions and tasks, in accordance with the relevant rules
and resolutions, including the resolutions of the Securities and Commodities Authority, so the main tasks will
be as follows:

1. Establish a policy on nominations for the Board of Directors and Executive Management, taking into
account gender diversity within the composition, encouraging
women through incentive and training programs. The Committee shall provide the Authority with a copy
of this policy and any amendments thereto.
2. Organize and follow up the procedures for nomination to the Board of Directors, in accordance with the
applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of the resolutions of the Securities and Commodities
Authority.

. Ensure the independence of independent members.

. Prepare and annually review the policy for the granting of bonuses, benefits, incentives, and salaries for
the members of the Board of Directors of the Company and its employees, and make sure that the
bonuses and benefits granted to the Senior Executive Management are reasonable and commensurate
with the performance of the Company.

5. Perform annual review of the skills required for Board membership, and prepare a description of the

capabilities and qualifications required for membership of the Board of

A w

6. Directors, including the time required to be allocated by a Board member to the proceedings of the Board
of Directors.

7. Review the Board structure and make recommendations regarding possible changes.

8. Identify the Company's needs of competencies at the level of senior executive management and
employees, as well as the bases of their selection.
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9. Any other matters determined by the Board of Directors or provided for in the relevant legislation and
resolutions.

Number of meetings held by the Nominations and Remuneration Committee during 2024

Nominations and Remuneration Committee

Meeting 1
Name of the member

01/07/2024
Ms. Lara Sleiman Present
Mr. Fardan Ali Al Fardan Present
Mr. Mohamed Ghobash Ahmed Ghobash Al Marri Present

Investment Committee:

Investment Committee Chairman Acknowledgement of his responsibility for the Committee system,
review of its work mechanism and effectiveness

Mr. Khalid Rashid Al Mazrouei, Investment Committee Chairman, herby acknowledges his responsibility for
the Committee system within the Company, reviewing its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.

Names of the Investment Committee and their Competencies and Duties.

No. Name Capacity

1 Mr. Khalid Rashid Al Mazrouei Chairman

2 Mr. Nadeem Ahmad Irfan Ahmad Member

3 Mr. Mohamed Ghobash Ahmed Ghobash | Member
Al Marri
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4 Mr. Fardan Ali Al Fardan Member

statement of the Committee's function and the tasks assigned to it:
The Investment Committee is responsible for following up on the Company's investments.

Number of meetings held by the Investment Committee during 2024

Investment Committee

Meeting 1 Meeting 2 Meeting 3 ‘ Meeting 4 I
Name of the member |
11/01/2024 28/05/2024 18/09/2024 ‘ 04/12/2024 ‘
Mr. Khalid Rashid Al Mazrouei Present Present Present Present
Mr. Nadeem Ahmad Irfan Present Present Present Present
Ahmad
Mr. Mohamed Ghobash Al Marri Present Present Present Present
Mr. Fardan Ali Al Fardan Present Present Present Present

Risk Committee:

Risk Committee Chairman Acknowledgement of his responsibility for the Committee system, review of
its work mechanism and effectiveness.

Mr. Fardan Ali Al Fardan, Risk Committee Chairman, his responsibility for the Committee system within the
Company, reviewing its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.

Names of the members of the Risk Committee, and statement of its powers and tasks assigned thereto.
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No. Name Capacity

1 Mr. Fardan Ali Al Fardan Chairman
2 Mr. Nadeem Ahmad Irfan Ahmad Member
3 Ms. Lara Sleiman Member

Statement of the Committee's function and the tasks assigned to it:

1. Develop a comprehensive risk management strategy and policies that are consistent with the nature and
volume of the Company activities, monitor its implementation, review, and update it, based on the
company internal and external changing factors.

2. ldentify and maintain an acceptable level of risks that the Company may face and ensure that the
Company does not exceed such level.

3. Supervise the risk management framework of the company and evaluate the effectiveness of the
framework and mechanisms of identifying and monitoring the risks that threaten the company, in order to
identify areas of inadequacy and adequacy.

4. Provide guidance to management, as needed, to assist them in improving their risk management
practices and / or mitigating certain risks, including the presence of qualified management personnel to
carry out risk management activities effectively.

5. Obtain assurance from the executive management and internal audit that the risk processes and systems
operate effectively with appropriate controls, in addition to compliance with approved policies.

6. Prepare detailed reports on the level of exposure to risks and recommended procedures for managing
such risks, along with submitting them to the Board.

7. Make recommendations to the Board on matters relating to risk management.

8. Ensure of the availability of adequate resources and systems for risk management.

9. Report regularly to the Board on the Company risk profile and promptly inform the Board of any significant
changes in the volume of the risk.

10. Verify that the risk management personnel are apart from the activities that may expose the Company to
risks.

11. Review any matters raised by the Audit Committee that may affect the Company risk management.

12.Review appointment, performance and replacement of the chief risk officer and monitor the effectiveness
of the risk management unit in general.
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Number of meetings held by the Risk Committee during 2024

Risk Committee

Meeting 1 Meeting 2  Meeting 3 | Meeting 4 | Meeting 5 ‘ Meeting 6

Name of the member
31/01/2024

13/05/2024 | 14/06/2024 ‘ 06/08/2024 "26/11!2024 ‘ 23/12/2024 |

Fardan Ali Al Fardan Present Present Present Present Present Present
Lara Sleiman Present Present Present Present Present Present
Nadeem Ahmad Irfan Ahmad Present Present Present Present Present Present

Duties and functions of the Board of Directors carried out by the Executive Management
pursuant to authorization from the Board to the Management, including the period and delegation

of authority and powers.

The CEO performs his duties pursuant to the authority delegated to him by the Chairman by
virtue of a notarized power of Attorney.

Name of the

Delegation validity Delegation duration

delegated person

Manage the Company's day-to-day regular
business in technical and administrative
matters and manage the operational and
insurance activities.

Ahmed Mohamad
1 Nassef Labib
Mohamed Abdellatif

Undefined / until revocation

Details of the transactions made with the related parties (stakeholders) during 2024.

Explanation of the nature of the Relationshi
p type

Name of Entity Transaction

volume in

relationship
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1. | ARABIAN ETHICALS CO. The shareholder: The Board Direct 57,573
(ETHIX) -Ghobash Trade and | members: Premiums
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
2. | BAHRI & MAZROEI The shareholder: The Board member: | Direct 2,447 880
TECHNICAL SYSTEMS CO | Rashid Al Mazrouei Khalid Al Mazrouei Premiums
(L.L.C) Real Estate One
Person Company LLC
3. | BAHRI & MAZROEI The shareholder:; The Board member: | Direct 1,984,220
TRADING CO. LLC Rashid Al Mazrouei Khalid Al Mazrouei Premiums
Real Estate One
Person Company LLC
4. | GHUBASH TRADING & The shareholder: The Board Direct 352
INVESTMENT CO. LTD. -Ghobash Trade and members: Premiums
LLC Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
5. | GHUBASH TRADING The shareholder: The Board Direct 16,705
GROUP -Ghobash Trade and members: Premiums
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
6. | GULF COMMERCIAL The shareholder: The Board Direct 2374
GROUP EST. -Ghobash Trade and members: Premiums
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
7. | GULF COMMERCIAL The shareholder: The Board Direct 4,022
GROUP ESTABLISHMENT | -Ghobash Trade and | members: Premiums
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
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8. | MAKEEN PROPERTIES The shareholder: The Board Direct 21.573
(L.L.C) -Ghobash Trade and members: Premiums
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
9. | MODERN LAUNDRY The shareholder: The Board Direct 10,952
-Ghobash Trade and members: Premiums
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
10| PRIME HOSPITALITY L.L.C | The shareholder: The Board Direct 150
-Ghobash Trade and members: Premiums
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
11| COMPUTER NETWORK The shareholder: The Board Direct 4,344
SYSTEMS EST. -Ghobash Trade and members: Premiums
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
12| OMAN COMPUTER The shareholder: The Board Direct 1,386
NETWORK SYSTEMS LLC [ -Ghobash Trade and members: Premiums
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
13| RASHID & OBAID ABNAA The shareholder: The Board member: | Direct 8,441
H. ALI AL MAZROEI Rashid Al Mazrouei Khalid Al Mazrouei Premiums
Real Estate One
Person Company LLC
14| RASHED AL MAZROEI The shareholder: The Board member: | Direct 15,257
REAL ESTATE ONE Rashid Al Mazrouei Khalid Al Mazrouei Premiums
PERSON COMPANY L.L.C | Real Estate One
; Person Company LLC
15| PYRAMIDS HEALTH The shareholder: The Board Direct 356
-Ghobash Trade and members:
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SERVICES Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash Premiums
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
16| KHALID RASHID HUMAID The shareholder:; The Board member: | Direct 10,717
AL MAZROUI Rashid Al Mazrouei Khalid Al Mazrouei Premiums
Real Estate One
Person Company LLC
17| NAWWAF GHOBASH The shareholder: The Board Direct 16,527
-Ghobash Trade and members: Premiums
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
18| SAQR BIN GHOBASH The shareholder: The Board Direct 27,833
-Ghobash Trade and members: Premiums
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
19| EMITAC ENTERPRISE The shareholder: The Board Direct 999,097
SOLUTIONS L.L.C -Ghobash Trade and members: Premiums
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
20| EMITAC HEALTHCARE The shareholder: The Board Direct 2,320,437
SOLUTIONS L.L.C -Ghobash Trade and members: Premiums
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
21| EMIRATES TECHNOLOGY | The shareholder: The Board Direct 437,354
CO (EMITAC DUBAI) L.L.C | -Ghobash Trade and members: Premiums
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
22| Emirates Electrical & The shareholder: The Board Direct 4,266
Instrumentation Company - | -Ghobash Trade and | members:
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Limited

-Mohamed Ghobash

LLC Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash Premiums
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
23| AL HIMAYAH INSURANCE | The shareholder: The Board Direct 1,459,732
BROKERAGE (LLC) Fidelity Assurance & members: Premiums
Renaissance S.A.L -Ricardo Suleiman
-Lara Suleiman
24| GULF WINGS TRAVEL The shareholder: The Board member: | Direct 81,382
Rashid Al Mazrouei Khalid Al Mazrouei Premiums
Real Estate One
Person Company LLC
1 PLATINUM REINSURANCE | The shareholder: The Board Treaty 10,856,524
BROKERS SAL. Fidelity Assurance & | members: Premiums
Renaissance S.A.L -Ricardo Suleiman
-Lara Suleiman
1 PLATINUM REINSURANCE | The shareholder: The Board Treaty 14,149,487
BROKERS SAL. Fidelity Assurance & | members: Claims
Renaissance S.A.L -Ricardo Suleiman
-Lara Suleiman
1 PLATINUM REINSURANCE | The shareholder: The Board Treaty 2,066,650
BROKERS SAL. Fidelity Assurance & | members: Commission
Renaissance S.A.L -Ricardo Suleiman
-Lara Suleiman
1 ALHIMAYAH [INSURANCE | The shareholder: The Board Commission | 247,483.9
BROKERAGE (LLC) Fidelity Assurance & | members: paid
Renaissance S.A.L -Ricardo Suleiman
-Lara Suleiman
1 ABAN INVESTMENT L.L.C. | The shareholder: The Board Claims paid 86,427
-Ghobash Trade and members:
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
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-Nawwaf Ghubash
2 ARABIAN ETHICALS CO. The shareholder: The Board Claims paid 93,929
(ETHIX) -Ghobash Trade and | members:
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
3 BAHRI & MAZROEI The shareholder: The Board member: | Claims paid 1,872,735
TECHNICAL SYSTEMS CO | Rashid Al Mazrouei Khalid Al Mazrouei
(L.L.C.) Real Estate One
Person Company LLC
4 BAHRI & MAZROEI The shareholder: The Board member: | Claims paid 651,959
TRADING CO. LLC Rashid Al Mazrouei Khalid Al Mazrouei
Real Estate One
Person Company LLC
S COMPUTER NETWORK The shareholder: The Board Claims paid 110,729
SYSTEMS EST ABU DHABI | -Ghobash Trade and | members:
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
6 GHUBASH TRADING & The shareholder: The Board Claims paid 88,478
INVESTMENT CO. LTD. -Ghobash Trade and | members:
LLC Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
i GULF COMMERCIAL The shareholder: The Board Claims paid 174,694
GROUP EST. -Ghobash Trade and members:
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
8 GULF COMMERCIAL The shareholder: The Board Claims paid 100,322
GROUP ESTABLISHMENT | -Ghobash Trade and | members:
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
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-Nawwaf Ghubash
9 MAKEEN PROPERTIES The shareholder: The Board Claims paid 79,071
(L.L.C) -Ghobash Trade and | members:
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
10 MODERN LAUNDRY The shareholder: The Board Claims paid 12,869
-Ghobash Trade and members:
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
11 PRIME HOSPITALITY L.L.C | The shareholder: The Board Claims paid 5,057
-Ghobash Trade and members:
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
12 COMPUTER NETWORK The shareholder: The Board Claims paid 627,044
SYSTEMS EST. -Ghobash Trade and | members:
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
14 BAYAN INVESTMENT LLC | The shareholder: The Board Claims paid 9,094
- ABU DHABI BRANCH -Ghobash Trade and members:
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
15 PYRAMIDS HEALTH The shareholder: The Board Claims paid 127,964
SERVICES -Ghobash Trade and | members:
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
16 EMITAC ENTERPRISE The shareholder: The Board Claims paid 630,861
SOLUTIONS L.L.C -Ghobash Trade and members:
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
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Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
17 EMITAC HEALTHCARE The shareholder: The Board Claims paid 1,504,019
SOLUTIONS L.L.C -Ghobash Trade and members:
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
18 EMIRATES TECHNOLOGY | The shareholder: The Board Claims paid 286,090
CO (EMITAC DUBAI) L.L.C | -Ghobash Trade and members:
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
19 Emirates Electrical & The shareholder: The Board Claims paid 271,819
Instrumentation Company - -Ghobash Trade and members:
L.LC Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
20 GULF WINGS TRAVEL The shareholder: The Board member: | Claims paid 55,268
Rashid Al Mazrouei Khalid Al Mazrouei
Real Estate One
Person Company LLC
21 PYRAMIDS DIALYSIS The shareholder: The Board Claims paid 9,347
CENTER -Ghobash Trade and members:
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
1 ABAN INVESTMENT L.L.C. | The shareholder: The Board Balance 6,760
-Ghobash Trade and members: Receivable /
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash (payable)
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
2 ARABIAN ETHICALS CO. The shareholder: The Board Balance 54,604
-Ghobash Trade and members: Receivable /
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(ETHIX) Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash (payable)
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
3 ATAYA ENTERPRISES The shareholder: The Board Balance -3,286
LLC -Ghobash Trade and members: Receivable /
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash (payable)
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
4 BAHRI & MAZROEI The shareholder: The Board member: | Balance 311,117
TECHNICAL SYSTEMS CO | Rashid Al Mazrouei Khalid Al Mazrouei Receivable /
(L.L.C) Real Estate One (payable)
Person Company LLC
5 BAHRI & MAZROEI The shareholder: The Board member: | Balance 838,200
TRADING CO. LLC Rashid Al Mazrouei Khalid Al Mazrouei Receivable /
Real Estate One .| (payable)
Person Company LLC
6 COMPUTER NETWORK The shareholder:; The Board Balance -1,427
SYSTEMS EST ABU DHABI | -Ghobash Trade and members: Receivable /
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash (payable)
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
7 GHOBASH GROUP The shareholder: The Board Balance 12,313
AND/OR GHOBASH -Ghobash Trade and members: Receivable /
FAMILY Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash (payable)
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
8 GHUBASH TRADING & The shareholder: The Board Balance 5,620
INVESTMENT CO. LTD. -Ghobash Trade and members: Receivable /
L.L.C Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash (payable)
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
9 GULF COMMERCIAL The shareholder: The Board Balance 15,373
GROUP EST. -Ghobash Trade and members: Receivable /
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
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Limited -Mohamed Ghobash | (payable)
-Nawwaf Ghubash
10 GULF COMMERCIAL The shareholder: The Board Balance 4,380
GROUP ESTABLISHMENT | -Ghobash Trade and | members: Receivable /
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash (payable)
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
1 MAKEEN PROPERTIES The shareholder: The Board Balance 9,266
(L.L.C) -Ghobash Trade and | members: Receivable /
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash (payable)
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
12 MECHANY FASHION The shareholder: The Board Balance 457
(L.L.C) -Ghobash Trade and members: Receivable /
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash (payable)
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
13 MODERN LAUNDRY The shareholder: The Board Balance 10,064
-Ghobash Trade and members: Receivable /
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash (payable)
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
14 PRIME HOSPITALITY L.L.C | The shareholder: The Board Balance 4,381
-Ghobash Trade and members: Receivable /
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash (payable)
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
16 COMPUTER NETWORK The shareholder: The Board Balance 11,425
SYSTEMS EST. -Ghobash Trade and | members: Receivable /
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash (payable)
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
17 OMAN COMPUTER The shareholder: The Board Balance 1,386
-Ghobash Trade and members: Receivable /
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NETWORK SYSTEMS LLC | Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash (payable)
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
18 RASHID & OBAID ABNAA The shareholder: The Board member: | Balance 8,315
H. ALl AL MAZROEI Rashid Al Mazrouei Khalid Al Mazrouei Receivable /
Real Estate One (payable)
Person Company LLC
19 ARABIAN ETHICALS The shareholder: The Board Balance 7,500
COMPANY - ABU DHABI -Ghobash Trade and members: Receivable /
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash (payable)
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
20 BAYAN INVESTMENT LLC | The shareholder: The Board Balance 1,156
- ABU DHABI BRANCH -Ghobash Trade and members: Receivable /
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash (payable)
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
21 KHALID RASHID HUMAID The shareholder: The Board member; | Balance 12,557
AL MAZROUI Rashid Al Mazrouei Khalid Al Mazrouei Receivable /
Real Estate One (payable)
Person Company LLC
22 SAQR BIN GHOBASH The shareholder: The Board Balance 3,843
-Ghobash Trade and members: Receivable /
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash (payable)
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
23 EMITAC ENTERPRISE The shareholder: The Board Balance -56,580
SOLUTIONS L.L.C -Ghobash Trade and members: Receivable /
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash (payable)
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
24 EMITAC HEALTHCARE The shareholder: The Board Balance 28,892
SOLUTIONS L.L.C -Ghobash Trade and members: Receivable /
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash
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Limited -Mohamed Ghobash | (payable)
-Nawwaf Ghubash
25 EMIRATES TECHNOLOGY | The shareholder: The Board Balance 3113
CO (EMITAC DUBAI) L.L.C | -Ghobash Trade and members: Receivable /
Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash (payable)
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
26 Emirates Electrical & The shareholder: The Board Balance -63,418
Instrumentation Company - | -Ghobash Trade and members: Receivable /
LLC Investment Company | -Nawwaf Ghubash (payable)
Limited -Mohamed Ghobash
-Nawwaf Ghubash
27 PLATINUM REINSURANCE | The shareholder: The Board Balance 4,861,040
BROKERS SAL. Fidelity Assurance & members: Receivable /
Renaissance S.A.L -Ricardo Suleiman (payable)
-Lara Suleiman
28 AL HIMAYAH INSURANCE | The shareholder: The Board Balance -181,932
BROKERAGE (LLC) Fidelity Assurance & members: Receivable /
Renaissance S.A.L -Ricardo Suleiman (payable)
-Lara Suleiman
29 ARC REINSURANCE The shareholder:; The Board Balance -4,803,409
BROKERS SAL Fidelity Assurance & members: Receivable /
Renaissance S.A.L -Ricardo Suleiman (payable)
-Lara Suleiman
30 FIDELITY ASSURANCE & The shareholder: The Board Balance 383,201
REINSURANCE CO. S.A.L | Fidelity Assurance & members: Receivable /
Renaissance S.A.L -Ricardo Suleiman (payable)
-Lara Suleiman

Assessment of the Board of Directors:

An annual assessment of the performance of the esteemed members of the Board of Directors and its

committees was conducted by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during the year.
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Organizational structure and executive management
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Details and Positions of the Chief Executive Officers and the Senior Executives of the Company

: Any other cash/in-
: Total salaries and Total bonuses | .
No. Position ‘:gt‘;o'”tme”t allowances  paid paid for 2024 ';'834 Ot;"gﬂsee"’;n tL";
for 2024 (AED) (AED)
future
1 Chief Executive Officer 1-Feb-18
2 Chief Financial Officer 26-Dec-22
3 Head of Distribution 11-Mar-20
4 Head of Consumer Lines 24-Mar-21
5 Head of Commercial Lines 3-Apr-16
and Reinsurance
6 Head of Employee Benefits 15-Apr-18
| Head of Human Capitaland | 12-Oct-20 9,311,270.28 144,000 N/A
Administration
8 Chief Executive Officer -2 1-Jun-24
9 Chief Technical Officer 1-Jul-24
10 | Chief of Distribution 8-Jul-24
11 | Chief Risk Officer 8-Jul-24
12 | Chief Operating Officer 8-Jul-24
13 | Chief Claims Officer 8-Jul-24
14 | Chief Technology Officer 8-Jul-24

Internal Control system

Internal Audit:

Mr. Ahmed Al Qahtani, appointed as Senior Manager of the Internal Audit Department on 21/02/2022, Holds
a(n) MBA from New York Institute of Technology, USA, and is tasked with supervising the internal audit section.

Compliance:
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Mrs. Jamal Ayache was appointed as senior legal and Compliance Manager on 9/12/2019. She has more than
ten years’ experience in legal and compliance. She holds a diploma in law from Lebanese University in 2004
and holds two certificates from the International Compliance Organization ICA in financial crime and AML in
2021

How the Internal Control Department deals with any major problems in the company.

The Internal Control Functions consistently assesses the effectiveness of internal controls and their alignment
with planned operations. Additionally, it monitors management's response to any identified deficiencies or
weaknesses. Oversight of the Internal Control system falls under the purview of the Board.

Number of reports issued by the Internal Control Department to the company Board of Directors.
During the year 2024, they issued (3) reports dealing with:

Anti money laundering — Reinsurance - Abu Dhabi Branch

Details of the violations committed during the fiscal year, the reasons and actions taken by the
company.

The Company has not committed any violations or breaches during the year 2024. In the event of any violation
or breach, the company takes the corrective action(s) required to avoid the violation committed and is keen to
implement.

Statement of cash and in-kind contributions made by the company during 2024 for community
development and environmental conservation.

The company has donated AED 6,214 as EID Distributions

External auditor:

Grant Thornton has been appointed as external auditor of 2024 by the General Assembly dated 23/04/2023.
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Name of the audit office Grant Thornton

Name of partner auditor Osama El-Bakry

Number of years he spent as the company external auditor From 2019 till date

Number of years the partner auditor spent auditing the company’s R felyPAr#AEEE
accounts

Total value of audit fees for 2024 (AED) AED 295,500

Details and nature of other services provided by the company REERCIIR=TIe ]I &IV W glel (Vo [SR (]
auditor (if any). In the event that there are no other services, this Ee[lE1lgY Agreed Upon
shall be stated explicitly. procedures performed in
accordance with the CBUAE
Regulations. No other Non audit
services are being provided to the
insurance company.

The value of fees and costs for other special services other than R}
auditing the financial statements for 2024 (AED), if any. In the event
that there are no other fees, this shall be stated explicitly.

Statement of other services that an external auditor other than the gEN[e}4=
company auditor provided during 2024 (if any). In the event that

there are no services provided by another external auditor, this shall

be stated explicitly.

Statement explaining the reservations that the company auditor included in the interim and annual
financial statements for 2024. In the event that there is no reservation, this shall be stated explicitly.
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The external auditor in their audit report has drawn attention to the note 28 of the Financial Statements
stating that the company has a SCR Solvency Deficit of AED 155.1m as compared to the SCR Capital
requirement of AED 161.2m.

General information:

Statement of the Company's market share price (closing price, highest price, and lowest price) at
the end of each month during the fiscal year 2024.

0 AED AED
January 1.6 1.6 1.6
February 1.6 1.6 1.6
March 1.6 1.6 1.6
April 1.6 1.6 1.6
May 1.6 1.6 1.6
June 1.6 1.6 1.6
July 1.6 1.6 1.6
August 1.6 1.6 1.6
September 1.6 1.6 1.6
October 1.6 1.6 1.6
November 1.6 1.6 1.6
December 1.6 1.6 1.6
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Statement of the comparative performance of the company share with the general market index and
the sector index to which the company belongs during 2024.
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Statement of the distribution of shareholder ownership as of 31/12/2024 (individuals, companies,
governments) classified as follows: local, Gulf, Arab, and foreign.
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Statement of Shareholders holding 5% of the Company's capital as of 31/12/2024

Number of owned Percentage of shares owned in

No. Name

shares the company’s capital

| Ghobash Trading & Investment Lid. 55,804,624 34.88%
Co

9 Fidelity Assurance & Renaissance 64,000,000 40%
SAL

3 Rashid Al Mazrouei Real Estate One 24,000,000 15%
Person Company LLC

4 Nawwaf Ghubash Ahmed Ghubash 15,000,000 9.38%
Al Marri

Statement of the distribution of the shareholders according to the size of their ownership as of
31/12/2024

Percentage of shares
owned from the
capital

0.00003%

Number of Number of
shareholders owned shares

Ownership of the shares (share)

Less than 50,000 49
From 50,000 to less than 500,000 1 200,000 0.125%

From 500,000 to less than 1 995,328 0.622%

5,000,000
More than 5,000,000 4 158,804,624 99.253%
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Statement of actions taken regarding investor relations controls

Name and contact information of the Investor Relations Officer

Obbad Fazal- Chief Financial Officer

Telephone: 04-2128020

Email: obbad.fazal@fidelityunited.ae

The electronic link to the investor relations page on the company’s website:
https://fidelityunited.ae/investorrelations/

Statement of the special decisions that were presented in the General Assembly held during 2024
and the actions taken in relation thereto.

No special decisions that were presented in the General Assembly held during 2024.

Name of Corporate Secretary in charge of the Board of Directors Meetings & Date of Appointment

Rapporteur of the Board of Directors: Samer Sabbagh.
Date of his appointment: 14/09/2022

Detailed statement of the fundamental events and important disclosures that the company
encountered during 2024.

The CEO, Mr. Bilal Adhami, submitted his resignation to the Board of Directors, and Mr. Ahmed Mohamad
Nassef Labib Mohamed Abdellatif was appointed as the company’s CEO.

Statement of the deals that the company made with related parties during 2024, which are equal to
5% or more of the company’s capital.

During the year 2024, the company did not conclude any deal with any of the related parties equal to 5% or
more of the company's capital.

Statement of the percentage of Emiratization at the company for the year 2022, 2023 and 2024

2022: 10.97%
2023: 13.44%
2024 :19.05 %
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Statement of innovative projects and initiatives undertaken by the Company or under development in

2024
Medical:

1. SME Aura portal Launch

2. Individual portal enhancement
3. Shory integration

4. Click 2 Secure integration

Motor & PL:
1. New Motor portal launch
2. Shory integration for Motor & PL

Commercial Lines:
1. Marine portal launch

2. Revamped Commercial SME and implemented new standalone products with Multi Risk/Location

IT Security:
1. Sentinel One End Point Security

2. Proofpoint Advanced Email Security

IT Integrations:
1. Integrated with ICP/SlashData

Robotic Process Automation:
1. Finance - Payment Gateway Receipting
2. Finance - Receipt Voucher Upload

Operations, Customer Service & Legal:

1. Full workflow automation — Renewal policy level
2. Operations optimization

3. Unified platform for customer service

Human Capital and Administration:
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1. Research on new HRMS
2. Individual Development Plan for employees’ learning and development

Claims:

1. Fresh Desk for mail management for motor claims

2. lIRIS enhancements for Claims module.

Signature of the
Chairman of the Board
of Directors

Signature of the

Chairman of the Audit

Committee

Signature of the
Chairman of
Nominations and
Remuneration
Committee

Signature of the
Director of the
Internal Control
Department

Date: 02/04/2025

- 02/04/2025

Date: 02/04/2025
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The Board of Directors’ Report — Year ended 315 December 2024

On behalf of the Board, | would like to present to you the Board of Directors Report for the year ended December 31,
2024,

Insurance revenue for the year ended December 31, 2024, amounted to AED 606.9m as compared to AED 566.2m for
the last year representing a 7% increase. The variation is mainly related to the consumer business which is partly offset
by the reduction in the employee benefits line of business, the commercial business remained consistent as compared
to the last year. The significant increase in Insurance service expenses of 64% as compared to last year is primarily
linked with higher claims for commercial and consumer business on account of multiple weather-related events which
adversely affected the Company in 2024. After considering the reinsurance recoveries, the net Insurance service result
is depicting an unfavourable position of AED 88.6m as compared to AED 32.6m for [ast year. The above figures also
reflect the impact of the Reinsurance Adjustments raised by the external auditors in their Q3 2024 review report.

After accounting for the Investment income which amounted to AED 18.5m (2023: AED 17.7m), finance income/
expenses and other operating expenses, the net loss before tax stands at AED 71.8m as compared to AED 17.4m in
the prior year. After considering the favourable corporate income tax impact due to the business losses, the net loss
after tax stood at AED 64.4m (2023: 17.4m). Key Financial trends for the year 2024 are shared below.

n s L2024 | 20230 i‘\-‘{-\ﬁ?{hr' Y
Insurance Revenue 606,962 566,162 40,800 7%
Insurance Service Expenses - 919,445| - 560,694| - 358,851 -64%!
Net Recovery from Rl contracts held 223,884] - 38,200 262,084 686%
Insurance Service Result - 88,599| - 32,632 - 55,967] -172%
Net Investment Income 18,461 17,710, 751 4%
Finance Income (expenses) net - 1,896] - 2,072 176 8%
Other Operating Expenses 217 - 438| 655] 150%
Net Loss before Tax - 71,817] - 17,432 - 54,385 -312%
Income tax 7413 - 7,413]  100%)
Net Loss after tax - 64,404] - 17.432| - 46,972 -269%

Outlook

During the last few months Fidelity United has gone through a massive restructuring exercise under the leadership of
the new management. Good progress has been achieved so far however there is a lot more which is in the works and
will be accomplished during 2025. The key focus has been on achieving superior underwriting results, keeping
sustainable growth in perspective. This will help to create portfolio optimization by expanding the distribution through
leveraging new products and enhanced connectivity with the business partners. Considering the earning pattern of
insurance premiums over the period of insurance policy, the above efforts will show positive results gradually moving
forward. Fidelity United will continue its efforts to enhance customer services and innovatively working to cater to our
customer requirements for an ever-changing business world. The Board is confident that Fidelity United will be able to
emerge out of the current scenario much stronger and generate profitable results in 2025.

The Board of Directors would like to thank all our customers and business partners for their continued trust in Fidelity
United, strengthening our image as the reliable insurance partner. The Board of Directors would also like to thank our
employees for their unwavering dedication and hard work.

. \'\ . \'\:‘:.r:!
)\ @

Chairman of the Board

Dated: March 24, 2025

UNITED FIDELITY INSURANCE COMPANY

In Conforminy with the Federal Law Moo 622007 Reg No (8) dated 2271201864 Suthorteed patd=up Capital Dhe 160,000,000

Ras Al Khaimah T: +971 7 2351584, F: +971 72353213, P.O. Box: 1010 - Sharjah T; +971 6 3682277, I': +971 6 5681586, P.O. Box: 5333

Dubai T: +971 4 2502501, F: +971 4 2502504. P.O. Box: 1888 - Abu Dhabi T: +971 2 6263313, F: +971 2 6263526, P.O. Box: 721 l\/
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.8.C) (the “Company”),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the statement of profit ot
loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in shareholdets’ equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting
policy information,

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Accounting
Standards) (‘TFRSs’) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Anditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with Infernational Ethics Standards
Board for Acconntants’ International Code of Etbics for Professional Acconntants (including International Independence
Standards) (“IESBA Code”), together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in United Arab Emirates and we have fulfilled our other ethical requirements in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 28 of the financial statements, which states that as of 31 December 2024, the
Company did not meet the Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) of AED 100 million, Solvency Capital
Requirement (SCR) of AED 161.2 million, Minimum Guarantee Fund (MGF) Requitement of AED 73
million and the Company has a SCR Solvency Margin Deficit of AED 155.1 million (31 December 2023:
AED 5.1 million). Further, the Company have accumulated losses of AED 94.5 million (31 December
2023: AED 36.3 million) and negative operating cash flows of AED 99.2 million as at 31 December 2024.
'These conditions indicates that 2 material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company
ability to continue as a going concern. The accompanying financial statements have been prepated on a
going concern basis as the Board of ditectors have approved a solvency recovety plan which includes the
commitment of injecting additional capital. The Company’s ability to comply with the solvency
requirement depends on effective implementation of the solvency tecovery plan, including capital injection,
which it will submit to the Central Bank of UAE. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

® 2025 Grant Thornton UAE - All rights reserved. Grant Thornton UAE represents all legal licenses under which Grant Thornton Audit and Accounting grantthornton.ae
Limited Corporation, A British Virgin Islands ("BVI") registered Branch, operate in the UAE. These licenses Include the Abu D habi, Dubai and Sharjah

based branches— Grant Tharnton Audit and Accounting Limited — registered with the Abu Dhabi Global Market — Grant Thornton Audit and Accounting

Limited Corporation BVI — registered with the Dubai Financial Services Authority. 2

“Grant Thornton” refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients
and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the context requires, GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member
firms are not agents of. and do not obligate. one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the cutrent year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter

audit matter

Valuation offinsurance contract liabilities, reinsurance contract assets and reinsurance contract

liabilities
As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s insurance
contract liabilities, reinsurance contract assets and
reinsurance contract liabilities are valued at AED
695,53 million, AED 450,86 million, and AED 3.81
million respectively, as disclosed in Note 9 to the
financial statements.

Valuation of insurance contract liabilities,
insurance contract assets, reinsurance contract
assets and reinsurance contract liabilities involve
significant judgements and estimates particularly
with respect to the estimation of the present value
of future cash flows, eligibility of the Premium
Allocation Approach (PAA) and estimation of the
liabilities for incurred claims.

These cashflows and liabiliies primarily include
determination of expected premium receipts,
expected ultimate cost of claims and allocation of
insurance acquisition cash flows which are within
the contract boundaries,

The calculation for these liabilides includes
significant estimation and involvement of actuarial
experts in order to ensure approptiateness of
methodology, assumptions and data used to
determine the estimated future cash flows and the
appropriateness of the discount rates used to
determine the present value of these cashflows.

As a result of all the above factors, we consider
valuation of insurance contract liabilities,
reinsurance contract assets and reinsutance
contract liabilities, as a key audit matter.

We performed the following procedures

conjunction with our actuatial specialists:

Understood and evaluated the process, the
design and implementation of controls in place
to determine valuation of insurance contract
liabilities, reinsurance contract assets and
reinsurance contract liabilities.

Assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the management appointed
actuary;

Tested the completeness, and on sample basis,
the accuracy and relevance of data used to
determine futute cashflows;

Evaluated the appropriateness of the
methodology,  significant  assumptions
including risk adjustment, PAA eligibility
assessment, discount rates and expenses
included within the fulfilment cashflows. This
incloded consideration of the reasonableness
of assumptions against actual historical
expetience and the appropriateness of any
judgments applied;

We independently reperformed the calculation
to assess the mathematical accuracy of the
insurance contract liabilities, reinsurance
contract assets and reinsurance contract
liabilities on selected classes of business,
particulatly focusing on latgest and most
uncertain reserves;

Evaluated and tested the calculation of the
expected credit loss allowance and the key
assumption and judgements used; and

Assessed the adequacy of disclosures included
in financial statements against the requirements
of IFRS Accounting Standatds.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter
Valuation of investnient propecties

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The Company holds investment properties under | Our audit procedures, among others, included:

the fair value model as at 31 December 2024 | ® Obtained an understanding of the process of

amounting to AED 46.55 million (2023: AED determining the fair value of the investment

46.63 million) respectively, as disclosed in Note 6 properties;

to the financial statements. e Assessed the competence, capabilities and

objectivity of the management appointed

Management appointed independent external independent external valuers;

valuers to determine the fair valuation of | @ Reviewed the scope of the engagement between

investment properties. 'The valuaton of the external valuer and the Company to

investment properties, as detailed in Note 6, determine if this was sufficient for audit

requires significant judgement to be applied and purposes;

estimates to be made by both managementandthe | o Verified the accuracy, completeness and

independent external valuers. Consequently, we [ relevance of the input data used for deriving fair

considered this to be a key audit mattet. values;

® FEvaluated the methodology and the
appropriateness of key assumptions used in
determining the fair value;

® Agreed the results of the valuations to the
amounts recorded in the financial statements; and

@ Assessed the adequacy of disclosures included in
financial statements against the requirements of
IFRS Accounting Standards.

Other Information

The Board of Directors and management are responsible for the other information. The other information
comptises the information included in the Board of Directors” report but does not include the financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and accotdingly we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is matetially inconsistent with
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materally
misstated. If, based on the wotk we have performed on the other information that are obtained prior to
the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.



GrantThornton

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.5.C.)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
and their preparation in compliance with the applicable provisions of the articles of association of the
Company, UAE Federal Decree Law No. 32 of 2021, UAE Federal Law No. 48 of 2023 regarding the
regulation of Insurance activities, Central Bank of the UAE Board of Directors” Decision No. (25) of 2014
pertinent to the Financial Regulations for Insurance Companies, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the pteparation of financial statements that are free from
matetial misstaterent, whether due to fraud or etror.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as 2 going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company ot to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
out opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud ot errot and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

®  Identify and assess the risks of matetial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
ot etror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those tisks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the citcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the approptiateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

® Conclude on the approptiateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matetial uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are tequited to draw attention in our auditor’s repott
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures ate inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern,

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.



» GrantThornton

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the
key audit matters. We desctibe these matters in our auditot’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosute about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in out report because the advetse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public intetest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the UAE Federal Dectee Law No. 32 of 2021, we teport that:

i) We have obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessaty for the putposes of
our zudit;

i)  The financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the applicable
provisions of the UAE Federal Decree Law No. 32 of 2021;

iify ~ The Company has maintained proper books of account in accordance with established accounting
ptinciples;

iv)  The financial information included in The Boatd of Ditectors’ report is consistent with the books of
accounts of the Company;

v)  Asdisclosed in note 7 to the financial statements, the Company has invested in securities during the
year ended 31 December 2024;

vi)  Note 24 to the financial statements discloses material related party transactions, and the terms under
which they were conducted;

vil)  The accumulated losses of the Company exceed 50% of the share capital as of 31 December 2024.
In order, to comply with the provision of Article 309 of Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, the Board of
Directors should call 2 General Assembly meeting within (30) thirty days of publishing the financial
statements and this meeting should be held within (30) thirty days of date of call. The shareholders
should decide in this meeting about whether to continue the Company’s operations or to dissolve it
priof to its prescribed tetm. Except for above, based on the information that has been made available
to us, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Company has
contravened duting the financial year ended 31 December 2024, any of the applicable provisions of
the Federal Decree Law No. 32 of 2021, or of its articles of association, which would materially affect
its activities or its financial position as at 31 December 2024; and

viii) Note 22 of the financial statements discloses the social contribution made duting the year ended 31
December 2024.



Y GrantThornton

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Dectee Law No. (48) of 2023, we report that we have obtained all
the information and explanation we considered necessaty for the purpose of our audit.

GRANT THO ON UAE
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United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.5.C.)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2024

Notes 2024 2023
AED AED

ASSETS
Property and equipment 5 9,613,144 11,766,413
Investment properties 6 46,553,999 46,639,999

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL) 7 154,527,065 155,987,108
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive

income (FVTOCI) 7 126,972,140 113,580,481
Reinsurance contract assets 9 450,862,720 212,801,173
Prepayments and other assets 10 7,319,700 4,539,292
Statutory deposits 11 10,000,000 10,000,000
Other receivables 881,839 2,126,240
Deferred tax asset 29 7,412,817 -
Bank balances and cash 12 21,971,602 76,228,358
TOTAL ASSETS 836,115,026 633,669,064
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 13 160,000,000 160,000,000
Statutory reserve 14 1,375,495 1,375,495
General reserve . 15 447,524 447,524
Reinsurance reserve 16 6,140,986 4,802,026
Curnulative change in fair value of FVTOCI investments 14,819,856 3,988,910
Accumulared losses {94,521,181) (36,303,139
TOTALEQUITY 88,262,630 134,310,816
LIABILITIES
Employees' end of service benefits 18 3,691,233 4,484,362
Insurance contract liabilities 9 695,532,679 465,498,527
Reinsurance contract liabilities 9 3,805,132 5,442,405
Deferred rax liabilicy ’ 29 2,058,901 -
Bank botrowing 19 20,000,000 =
Lease liabilities 20 5,640,413 7,187,505
Other payables 21 17,123,988 16,745,449
TOTAL LIABILITIES 747,852,346 499,358,248
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 836,115,026 633,669,064

These financial statements were authorised for issue on z 4 MAR 2[]25 by the Board of Djrectors and
signed on its behalf by:

' Chairman Chief Execxlf}it:e Offickr

The attached explanatory notes from 1 to 30 form part of these financial statements.
8




United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Insutance revenue
Insurance service expenses

Insurance service result before reinsurance contracts
held

Allocation of reinsurance premiums
Amounts recoverable from reinsurance for incurred claims
Net expenses from reinsurance contracts held

Insurance service results

Insurance finance expense for insurance contracts issued

Reinsurance finance income for reinsurance contracts held
Net insurance finance expense

Net investment income

Other operating expense
Other operating income
Loss before tax

Income tax credit

Loss for the year after tax

Basic and diluted loss per share

Notes

23
23

23

29

17

2024 2023

AED AED
606,962,559 566,162,066
(919,445,609)  (560,594,300)
(312,483,050) 5,567,766
(324,743,039)  (311,311,919)
548,627,144  273111,786
223,884,105 (38,200,133)
(88,598,945) (32,632,367
(6,111,379) (6,773,662
4,815,609 4,701,969
(1,895,770) __ (2,071,693)
18,460,756 17,710,114

- (595,673)

217,406 157,687
(71,816,553)  (17,431,932)
7,412,817 .
(64,403,736)  (17,431932)
(0.403) (0.109)

The attached explanatory notes from 1 to 30 form patt of these financial statements.
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United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
Note AED AED
Loss for the year afier tax (64,403,736) (17,431,932)
Other comprehensive income:
Irems that will not be reclassified subsegquently to
profit or loss:
Net change in fair value of equity investments designated at it
FVTOCI — net of tax 18,355,600 15,534,700
Total other comprehensive income for the year 18,355,600 15,534,700
Total Comprehensive Loss for the Year (46,048,136) (1,897,232)

The attached explanatory notes from 1 to 30 form part of these financial statements.

10
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United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property and equipment
Change in fair value for investments at FVIPL
Investment income

Provision for expected credit losses

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

Operating cash flows before changes in working capital

Changes in working capital:

Reinsurance contract assets -net

Insurance contract liabilities - net

Other receivables

Other payables

Cash (used in) / generated from operations

Employees end of service indemnity paid

Net cash (used in) /generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment

Net movement in fixed deposits

Proceeds from disposal of investments at FVTOCI
Purchase of investments at FVTOCI

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of investments at FVTPL
Purchase of investments at FVIPL

Dividend received from investments at FVTOCI
Income received from investment properties

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid on lease liabilities

Bank term loan obtained

Payment of lease liabilities

Net cash generated / (used in) financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Non-cash transactions not included in the cash flows:
Addition to right to use of assets and lease liability
Adjustment on termination to right to use assets
Adjustment on termination to lease liability

Notes

18

18

12

2024 2023
AED AED
(71,816,553) (17,431,932)
2,954,263 5,326,599
2,428,875 528,029
(20,880,630) (18,335,359)
2,151,727 2,348,004
364,920 727,156
1,170,498 978,192
(83,626,900) (25,859,311)
(240,213,274) (64,603,341)
228,396,879 122,831,592
(2,208,665) (454,833)
377,453 1,368,002
(97,274,507) 33,282,109
(1,963,627) (643,605)
(99,238,134) 32,638,504
(800,994) (642,768)
10,000,000 10,000,000
65,697,701 90,125,468
(58,918,371) (66,038,520)
6,624,865 6,458,099
17,889,552 29,276,218
(18,858,384) (82,003,515)
13,315,052 9,790,357
1,943,969 1,739,060
36,893,390 (1,295,601)
(364,920) (727,157
20,000,000 4
(1,547,092) (3,123,446)
18,087,988 (3,850,603)
(44,256,756) 27,492,300
63,228,358 35,736,058
18,971,602 63,228,358

. 1,396,211

. (7,906,827)

. (8,652,952)

The attached explanatory notes from 1 to 30 form part of these financial statements.
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United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

1 Legal status and activities

United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.) (the “Company) is a public shareholding Company and was
registered in the Emirate of Ras Al Khaimah by Emiri decree No. 13/76 issued by the ruler of Ras Al
Khaimah on 15 September 1976, which was amended by the Emiri decree No. 10/77 issued on 15
December 1977. The Company is tegisteted in the Insurance Companies Register of Central Bank of the
United Arab Emirates under registration number 8.

The Company is domiciled in the United Arab Emirates, in the financial year 2023, the Company changed
its registered office address to Abu Dhabi located at Office 407, Bloom Central Building, Airport Road, Al
Manhal, Al Tibbiya, PO Box no: 721, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates. The Company’s ordinary shates
are listed on Abu Dhabi Secutities Exchange, United Arab Emirates. The principal activity of the Company
is the writing of all classes of general and life insurance. The Company operates through its Head Office in
Dubai and branch offices in Abu Dhabi, Ras Al Khaimah, Shatjah and Fujairah.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the applicable laws
and regulations, including UAE Federal Decree Law No. 32 of 2021.

On December 9, 2022, the United Arab Emirates (UAE) Ministry of Finance (MoF) released Federal
Decree Law No 47 of 2022 on the Taxation of Corporations and Businesses, Corporate Tax Law (CT Law)
to enact 2 new CT regime in the UAE. The new CT regime has become effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2023. As the Company’s accounting year ends on 31 December, the first tax
petiod is from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024, with the respective tax retutn to be filed on or before
30 September 2025.

The taxable income of the entities that are in scope for UAE CT purposes will be subject to the rate of 9%
on taxable profits above AED 375,000. The Company has incurred a taxable loss during the current year,
in relation to which it has recognised a deferred tax asset amounting to AED 7,412,817. This deferted tax
asset is expected to be realised through future taxable profits.

2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”)
New and revised IFRSs and interpretations applied on the financial statements

The following relevant standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards were issued by the
IASB:

Standard number Title Effective date
Amendment to IAS 1 — Non-current liabilities with covenants
IAS1 and classification of liabilities as current or non-current 1 January 2024

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures—Supplier Finance
1AS7 Arrangements 1 January 2024
IFRS 16 Amendment to IFRS 16 — Leases on sale and leaseback 1 January 2024

These standatds did not have a material impact on these financial statements.
Standards issued but not yet effective

The impact of the new standards, interpretations and amendments that are issued, but not yet effective, up
to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends
to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

Standard number Title Effective date

IAS 21 Amendments to IAS 21 - Lack of exchangeability 1 January 2025
Amendments to IFRS 9 and 7 - Amendments to the

IFRS9 & IFRS 7 Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments 1 January 2026

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements 1 Januvaty 2027

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures 1 January 2027
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United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

3 Statement of compliance with IFRS

These financial statements atre for the year ended 31 December 2024 and are presented in United Arab
Emirates Dirham (AED), which is also the functional currency of the Company. The financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards promulgated by International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and interpretations thereof issued by the IFRS Interpretations
Committee (“IFRS IC”) and in compliance with the applicable requirements of the United Arab Emitates
(U.AE.) Federal Decree Law No. 32 of 2021, the United Arab Emirates (U.A.E.) Federal Dectee Law No.
48 of 2023 regarding the regulation of Insurance activities and the Insurance Authority Board of Directors’
Decision No. (25) of 2014 pertinent to the Financial Regulations for Insurance Companies.

As disclosed in note 28 of the financial statements, as at 31 December 2024, the Company did not meet
the Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) of AED 100 million, Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) of
AED 161.2 million, Minimum Guarantee Fund (MGF) of 73 million and the Company has a SCR Solvency
Margin Deficit of AED 155.1 million (31 December 2023: AED 5.1 million). Further, the Company have
accumulated losses of AED 94.5 million (31 December 2023: AED 36.3 million) and negative operating
cash flows of AED 99.2 million as at 31 December 2024 and the Company’s ability to comply with the
solvency requirement depends on the effective implementation of its solvency recovery plan, including
capital injection, which it will submit to the Central Bank of UAE. However, as certain actions included in
the plan are not wholly within management’s control, a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Additionally, as the accumulated losses have exceeded 50% of the shate capital, as required by Article 309
of Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021, the Board of Directors should call a General Assembly meeting
within (30) thirty days of publishing the financial statements and this meeting should be held within (30)
thirty days of date of call. The shareholders should decide in this meeting about whethet to continue the
Company’s operations or to dissolve it prior to its presctibed.

Accounting convention

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for the measurement
at fair value of investments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) and investment properties which are carried at fair value and the
provision for employees’ end of setrvice indemnity which is measutred in accordance with U.A.E labor laws.
The financial statements have been presented in UAE Dirhams (AED) except when otherwise indicated.

The Company’s statement of financial position is not presented using a cutrent / non-current classification.
However, the following balances would generally be classified as cutrent: bank balances and cash, other
receivables, prepayments and other assets and other payables. The following balances would generally be
classified as non-current: property and equipment, investment properties, statutory deposit, deferred tax
asset, deferred tax liabilities and provision for employees’ end of service indemnity. The following balances
are of mixed nature (including both current and non-current portions): investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income, investments at fair value through profit or loss, insurance contract assets,
reinsurance contract assets, insurance contract liabilities, reinsurance contract liabilities, bank term loan and
lease liabilities.

4 Material accounting policies
Standards, interpretations, and amendments to existing standards
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance
contracts, reinsurance contracts and investment contracts with discretionary participation features.
It introduces a model that measures groups of contracts based on the Company’s estimates of the present
value of future cash flows that are expected to arise as the Company fulfils the contracts, an explicit risk
adjustment for non-financial risk and a contractual service margin.
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United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

£ Material accounting policies (continued)
Standards, interpretations, and amendments to existing standards (continued)
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Under IFRS 17, insurance revenue in each reporting petiod tepresents the changes in the liabilities for
remaining coverage that relate to services for which the Company expects to receive consideration and an
allocation of premiums that relate to recovering insurance acquisition cash flows. In addition, investment
components are no longer included in insurance revenue and insurance service expenses.

The Company applies the PAA to simplify the measurement of all of its insurance and reinsurance
contracts. When measuring liabilities for remaining coverage, the PAA is similar to the Company’s previous
accounting treatment, However, when measuting liabilities for outstanding claims, the Company now
discounts the futute cash flows (unless they are expected to occur in one year or less from the date on
which the claims are incurred) and includes an explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk.

Recognition
The Company recognises groups of insurance contracts it issues from the earliest of the following:

*  The beginning of the coverage period of the group of contracts;

*  The date when the first payment from a policyholder in the group is due or when the first payment is
received if there is no due date;

*  For a group of onerous contracts, if facts and circumstances indicate that the group is onerous the
Company recognises a group of reinsurance contracts held:

*  If the reinsurance contracts provide proportionate coverage at the later of the beginning of the
coverage period of the group, ot the initial recognition of any undetlying conttact; and

*  In all other cases, from the beginning of the coverage period of the group the Company adds new
contracts to the group when they are issued or initiated.

Level of Aggregation

Level of aggregation relates to the unit of account under IFRS 17, The unit of account under IFRS 17 is referred
to as a ‘Group of Contracts’ (GoCs) and requirements relating to level of agpregation define how groups of
contracts have to be determined.

The standard has set out the following requirements to determine a group of contracts:
- Portfolio — contracts that have similar tisks and that are managed together can be grouped.
- Profitability — contracts with similar expected profitability (at inception or initial recognition) can be
grouped.
For this purpose, the standard has mandated at least the following three classifications however it is
permitted to use more granular classifications:

= Contracts that are onerous at inception.
®  Contracts that are not onetous and have no significant possibility of becoming onerous; and
= All other contracts

Cohoris

Contracts issued mote than 12 months apatt cannot be grouped together. However, in certain
circumnstances a one-time simplification upon transition for contracts as at the transition is allowed.
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United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4 Material accounting policies (continued)
Standards, interpretations, and amendments to existing standards (continued)
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Level of Aggregation (continued)
Measurement - Premium Allocation Approach
Insurance contracts — initial measurernent

The Company applies the premium allocation approach (PAA) to all the insurance contracts that it issues
and reinsurance contracts that it holds, as:

*  The coverage period of each contract in the group is one year or less, including coverage arising from
all premiums within the contract boundary; or

* For contracts longer than one year, the Company has modelled possible future scenarios and
reasonably expects that the measurement of the liability for remaining coverage for the group
containing those contracts under the PAA does not differ matetially from the measurement that would
be produced applying the general model. In assessing matedality, the Company has also considered
qualitative factors such as the nature of the risk and types of its lines of business.

The Company does not apply the PAA if, at the inception of the group of contracts, it expects significant
variability in the fulfilment cash flows that would affect the measurement of the liability for the remaining
coverage during the year before 2 claim is incurred. Variability in the fulfilment cash flows increases with:

*  The extent of future cash flows related to any derivatives embedded in the contracts.
*  The length of the coverage year of the group of contracts.

For a group of contracts that is not onerous at initial recognition, the Company measures the liability for
remaining coverage as the premiums, if any, received at initial recognition, minus any insurance acquisition
cash flows at that date, with the exception of contracts which are one year or less where this is expensed,
plus ot minus any amount atising from the derecognition at that date of the asset or liability recognised for
insurance acquisition cash flows that the Company pays or receives before the group of insurance contracts
is recognised. There is no allowance for time value of money as the premiums are mostly received within
one year of the coverage year.

The Company measures its reinsurance assets for a group of reinsurance contracts that it holds on the same
basis as insurance contracts that it issues, however, adapted to reflect the features of reinsurance contracts
held that differ from insurance contracts issued, for example the generation of expenses or reduction in
expenses rather than revenue.

Insurance contracts — subsequent measurement

The Company measures the carrying amount of the liability for remaining coverage at the end of each
reporting year as the liability for remaining coverage at the beginning of the year:

*  Plus premiums received in the yeat;

*  Minus capitalised insurance acquisition cash flows;

*  Plus any amounts relating to the amortisation of the acquisition cash flows recognised as an expense
in the reporting year for the group;

*  Plus any adjustment to the financing component, where applicable;

*  Minus the amount recognised as insurance revenue for the coverage year; and

*  Minus any investment component paid or transferred to the liability for incurred claims.

The Company estimates the liability for incurred claims as the fulfilment cash flows related to incurred
claims. The fulfilment cash flows incorporate, in an unbiased way, all reasonable and supportable
information available without undue cost ot effort about the amount, timing and uncertainty of those future
cash flows, they reflect current estimates from the perspective of the entity and include an explicit
adjustment for non-financial risk (the risk adjustment). The Company adjust the future cash flows for the
tdme value of money and the effect of financial tisk for the measurement of liability for incurted claims.

Insurance acquisition cash flows are allocated on a straight-line basis to statement of profit ot loss.
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Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Reinsurance contracts

The subsequent measurement of reinsurance contracts held follows the same principles as those for
insurance contracts issued and has been adapted to reflect the specific features of reinsurance held,

Insurance contracts — modification and derecognition
The Company derecognises insurance contracts when:

* The rights and obligations relating to the contract are extinguished (i.e., discharged, cancelled or
expired);
Or
*  The contract is modified such that the modification results in a change in the measurement model or
the applicable standard for measuting a component of the contract, substantally changes the contract
boundary, or requires the modified contract to be included in a different group. In such cases, the
Company derecognises the initial contract and recognises the modified contract as a new contract.

When a modification is not treated as a detecognition, the Company recognises amounts paid or received
for the modification with the contract as an adjustment to the relevant liability for remaining coverage.

Presentation

The Company has presented separately, in the statement of financial position, the carrying amount of
groups of insurance contracts issued that are assets, groups of insurance contracts issued that are liabilites,
reinsurance contracts held that are assets and groups of reinsurance contracts held that are liabilities.

Any assets or liabilities for insurance acquisition cash flows recognised before the corresponding insurance
contracts atre included in the carrying amount of the related groups of insurance contracts issued.

The Company disaggregates the total amount recognised in the statement of statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income into an insurance service result, comprising insurance revenue and insurance
service expense, and insurance finance income or expenses.

The Company disaggregates the change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk between a financial and
non-financial portion which will be presented in insurance finance income or expenses and in insurance
service result respectively. The Company separately presents income or expenses from reinsurance
contracts held from the expenses or income from insurance contracts issued.

Insurance revenue

For groups of insurance contracts measured under the PAA, the Company recognises insurance revenue
based on the passage of time over the coverage period of a group of contracts where revenue is recognised
based on expected timing of incurred insurance service expenses.

Loss components

The Company assumes that no contracts are onetous at initial recognition unless facts and citcumstances
indicate otherwise. The Company reassess this on quarterly basis and if at quarter end, the facts and
citcumstances indicate that a group of insurance contracts is onerous, the Company establishes a loss
component as the excess of the fulfilment cash flows that relate to the remaining coverage of the group
over the carrying amount of the liability for remaining coverage of the group. Accotdingly, by the end of
the coverage year of the group of contracts the loss component will be zero.
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Standards, interpretations and amendments 10 existing standards
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Insurance finance income and expense

Insurance finance income or expenses comprise the change in the catrying amount of the group of
insurance conttacts arising from:

*  The effect of the time value of money and changes in the time value of money; and
*  The effect of financial risk and changes in financial risk.

The Company do not disaggregate insurance finance income or expenses between statement of profit or
loss and statement of other comptehensive income.

Net income or expense from reinsurance contracts held

The Company presents separately on the face of the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the amounts expected to be recovered from reinsurers, and an allocation of the reinsurance
premiums paid. The Company treats reinsurance cash flows that are contingent on claims on the underlying
contracts as part of the claims that are expected to be reimbursed under the reinsurance contract held, and
excludes investment components and commissions from an allocation of reinsurance premiums presented
on the face of the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments
Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value plus transactions costs. Regular
way putchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the date on which the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset i.e, the trade date.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognised when it is extinguished.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

For the purposes of subsequent measutement, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following
categories:

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets at amortised cost are those financial assets for which:
® the Company’s business model is to hold them in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

® the contractual terms give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial recognition these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial.

These are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period which ate classified as non-current assets.

Financial assets at amottised cost comptise statutory deposits, cash and cash equivalents, amounts due from
related parties and most other assets.
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IFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’)

Financial assets held for trading are not held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset
in order to collect contractual cash flows.

The Company has designated certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss because designation
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch, which would otherwise arise.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVIOCT)

Investments in equity securities are classified as FVTOCI. At initial recognition, the Company can make an
irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate investments in equity investments
at FVT'OCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading.

Fair value measurement

For investments traded in organised financial markets, fair value is determined by reference to stock
exchange quoted prices at the close of business on the statement of financial position date. Investments in
unquoted securities are measured at fair value, considering observable market inputs and unobservable
financial data of investees.

All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of a financial
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivety of the financial asset within the timeframe established
by the matket concerned, and are initially measured at fait value, plus transaction costs, except for those
financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL). Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets classified as at FVIPL are recognised immediately in
statement of profit or loss.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value on the basis of the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Specifically:

6] debt insttuments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding (SPPI), are subsequently measured at amortised cost;

(if) debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cash flows that
are SPPI, are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCD);

(iii) all other debt instruments (e.g. debt instruments managed on a fair value basis or held for sale)
and equity investments ate subsequently measured at FVIPL. However, the Company may make
the following itrrevocable election/designation at initial recognition of a financial asset on an asset-
by-asset basis:

a. the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment that is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies, in other comprehensive income
(OCI); and

4. the Company may irrevocably designate a debt instrument that meets the amortised cost or
FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates ot significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch (referred to as the fair value option).
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Equity instruments at FVI'OCI

Investments in equity instruments/funds at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
tecognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the cumulative changes in fair value of
securities. The cumulative gain ot loss will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss on disposal of
the investments in equity instruments/funds but reclassified to retained earnings. The Company has
designated all investments in equity insttuments that are not held for trading as FVTOCI.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in statement of profit or loss when
the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established unless the dividends cleatly represent a recovery
of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in statement of other
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to statement of profit or loss.

When a debt instrument measured at FVTOCI is derecognised, the cumulative gain/loss previously
recognised in statement of other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to statement of profit
or loss.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI are subject to
impairment.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are:
@ assets with contractual cash flows that are not SPPI; or/and
(i) assets that are held in a business model other than held to collect contractual cash flows or held to

collect and sell; or
(1ii) assets designated at FVTPL using the fair value option.

These assets are measured at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
statement of profit or loss.

Impairment
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on bank balances including statutory

and fixed deposits; other assets that are not measured at FVIPL; and debt investments measured
subsequently at amottised cost ot at FVTOCIL

No impaitment loss is recognised on equity investments. A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required
for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. For all other financial instruments, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-
months ECL.

The Company has elected to measute loss allowances for other assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
Current accounts with banks, debt investments measured subsequently at amortised cost or at FVTOCI,
fixed deposits and statutory deposits are assessed to have low credit risk as they are held with reputable
local banks.

Loss allowance for financial investments measured at amortised costs are deducted from gross carrying
amount of assets.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue costs or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forwatd-looking information.
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IFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment (continued)

Forward-looking information considered includes the future prospects of the industries in which the
Company’s receivables operate, obtained from economic expert repotts, financial analysts, governmental

bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as considetadon of various external
sources of actual and forecast economic information that relate to the Company’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

. An actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial insttument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;
° Significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk for a particular financial

instrument, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor, or the length of time or the extent to which the fair value of a financial asset has been less
than its amortised cost;

® Existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtot’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° An actual or expected significant detetioration in the operating results of the debror;

. Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor;

. An actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Company presumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are past due,
unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(1) The financial instrument has a low risk of default,
(2) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its conttactual cash flow obligations in the near term, and

(3) Adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Company considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has external credit rating of
‘investment grade’ in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of ‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has a
strong financial position and there are no past due amounts.

The Company regulatly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensute that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Fot certain categories of financial assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Company’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

Impairment losses related to bank balances including statutory and fixed deposits, debt investments
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI, and insurance and other receivables are presented in the statement
of profit or loss within “(Charge)/ release of provision for impairment”.
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Measurement of ECL

The Company employs statistical models for ECL calculations fotr bank balances, statutory and fixed
deposits. ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. The parameters used in calculation were
detived from the Company’s internally developed statistical models and other historical data. They were
adjusted to reflect forward-looking information.

The Company reassessed its impairment loss on its insurance and other receivables portfolio using an
expected loss measurement basis using the simplified approach.

Credit impaired financial assets

A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more cvents that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. At each reporting date, the Company
assesses whether financial assets carried are credit impaired.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewatrds of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewatds of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of property and equipment.
The following estimated useful lives are applied:

s Furniture and equipment 5-10 years
* Computers and office equipment 2-5 years
* Motor vehicles 4 years

The catrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
citcumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be tecovetable. If any such indication exists and
where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their
recoverable amount, being the higher of their value less costs to sell and their value in use.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss atising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of comprehensive income in the year the asset is derecognised.

Expenditure incusred to replace a component of an item of property and equipment that is accounted for
separately is capitalised and the carrying amount of the component that is replaced is written off. Other
subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases future economic benefits of the related item of
propetty and equipment. All other expenditure is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as the
expense is incurred.

Capital work in progress

Capital wotk in progress is stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost includes the cost of
construction and other related expenditure which are capitalised as and when activities that are necessary
to get the assets ready for use are in progress. Net realisable value represents the estimated recoverable
value based on expected future usage. Management reviews the carrying values of the capital work in
progress on an annual basis.
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Capital work in progress ate considered to be completed when all related activities, for the entire assets
have been completed. Upon completion, those are transferred to property and equipment.

Investment properties

Investment properties are measuted initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting
date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in the
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they arise, including the corresponding tax effect. Fair values
are cvaluated annually by an accredited external, independent valuer, applying a valuation model
recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of, of when the investment
propetty is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any pains or losses on the retitement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year of retitement or disposal.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when thete is a change in use. For 2 transfer
from investment property to ownetr-occupied propetty, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the
fair value at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an investment propetty, the
Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment
up to the date of change in use. (refer Note 6 for valuation techniques and inputs).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comptise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less in the statement of financial position which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist
of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered
an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as 2 separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbutsement.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when approptiate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Leases

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred. The right-of-use is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the eatlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the
lease term. The estimated useful life of the right-of-use asset is determined on the same basis as those of
lease contract period. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any
and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measuted at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rates as the discount rate.
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The lease liability is subsequently measured at amottised cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in the future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate,
if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, ot if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension, or
termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in the statement of profit or loss if the
catrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Employee benefits
Annial leave and leave passage.

An accrual is made for the estimated liability for employees' entitlement to annual leave and leave passage
as a result of services rendered by eligible employees up to the end of the year.

Provision for eniployees” end of service indenmity
Provision is made for the full amount of end of service benefits due to non-UAE national employees in
accordance with the U.A.E Labour Law and is based on cutrent remuneration and their period of service

at the end of the reporting period.

Bank borrowing

Short team bank borrowing is secured by assignment of certain investments in favor of financial institutions.
These loans carry a fixed interest rate of 0.65% per annum. Shott-term loans are utilized for Company’s
operational activities.

Defined contribution plan

UAE national employees of the Company are members of the Government-managed retitement pension
and social security benefit scheme pursuant to UAE Labour Law No. 7 of 1999. The Company is required
to contribute 12.5% of the “contribution calculation salary” of payroll costs to the retitement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The employees and the Government contribute 5% and 2.5% of the
“contribution calculation salary” respectively, to the scheme. The only obligation of the Company with
respect to the retirement pension and social security scheme is to make the specified contributions. The
contributions are charged to statement of profit or loss.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements, They are disclosed unless the possibility
of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not recognised
in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Judgements and estimates

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that effect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, income, and expense. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

In preparing these financial statements, the significant judgements made by management in applying the
accounting policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty were the same as those that were applied
in the audited financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023.

24



United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Judgements and estimates (continued)
Measurement of the expected credit loss (“ECL”) allowance

The measurement of ECL is a significant estimate that involves determination of methodology, models and
data inputs. The following components have a major impact on the credit loss allowance for debt
instruments cartied at amottised cost, FVTOCI investments, bank balances and fixed deposits: definition
of default, significant increase in credit risk, probability of default (“PD”), exposure at default ("EAD”),
and loss given default (“LGD”) and the historical loss experience per ageing bucket has the major impact
on the credit loss allowance for Insurance and other receivables. The Company regularly reviews and
validates the models and inputs to the models to reduce any differences between expected credit loss
estimates and actual credit loss experience.

Valuation of unguoted equity investments

Valuation of unquoted equity investments is normally based on recent arm’s length market transactions,
current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, the expected cash flows discounted
at current rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk characteristics, or other valuation models.

Fair value of investment properties

Determining the fait value requites an estimation of future cash flows expected to atise from the investment
propetties, a suitable growth rate, expected occupancy and a suitable discount rate in ordet to calculate the
present value. It is reasonably possible on the basis of the existing knowledge that outcomes within next
financial year that are different from estimates made could require material adjustment to the fair value of

the investment properties.
Liability for remaining coverage

For insurance acquisition cash flows, the Company is eligible and chooses to recognise the payments as an
expense immediately (coverage period of a year or less) for its propetty insurance product line. For personal
accident insurance, marine insurance and liability reinsurance products, acquisition costs are capitalised.

Liability for remaining coverage (continued)

The effect of recognising insurance acquisition cash flows as an expense on initial tecognition of group of
insurance contracts is to increase the liability for remaining coverage on initial recognition and reduce the
likelihood of any subsequent onerous contract loss. There would be an increased charge to statement of
income on initial recognition, due to expensing acquisition cash flows, offset by an increase in profit
released over the coverage period. For groups of contracts that are onerous, the liability for remaining
coverage is determined by the fulfilment cash flows. For the marine and personal insurance product lines,
the Company adjusts the catrying amount of the liability for remaining coverage to reflect the time value
of money and the effect of financial risk using discount rates that reflect the characteristics of the cash flows
of the group of insurance contracts at initial recognition.

Liability for incurred claims

The ultimate cost of outstanding claims is estimated by using a range of standard actuarial claims projection
techniques, such as Expected Loss Ratio, Chain Ladder and Bomheutter-Ferguson methods.

The main assumption undetlying these techniques is that a Company’s past claims development experience
can be used to project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs.

These methods extrapolate the development of paid and incurred losses, average costs per claim (including
claims handling costs), and claim numbets based on the observed development of eatlier years and expected
loss ratios. Historical claims development is mainly analysed by accident years, but can also be further
analysed by geographical area, as well as by significant business lines and claim types. Large claims are
usually separately addressed, eithet by being reserved at the face value of loss adjuster estimates ot separately
projected in order to reflect their future development. In most cases, no explicit assumptions are made
regarding future rates of claims inflation or loss ratios. Instead, the assumptions used are those implicit in
the historical claim’s development data on which the projections are based.
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Liability for incurred claims (continued)

Additional qualitative judgement is used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in future,
(e.g., to reflect one-off occutrences, changes in external or market factors such as public atttudes to
claiming, economic conditions, levels of claims inflation, judicial decisions and legislation, as well as internal
factors such as portfolio mix, policy features and claims handling procedutes) in order to arrive at the
estimated ultimate cost of claims that present the probability weighted expected value outcome from the
range of possible outcomes, taking account of all the uncertainties involved.

Some of the insurance contracts that have been written in the property line of business permit the Company
to sell property acquired in settling a claim. The Company alsc has the right to pursue third parties for
payment of some or all costs. Estimates of salvage recoveries and subrogation reimbursements are
considered as an allowance in the measurement of ultimate claims costs.

Other key circamstances affecting the reliability of assumptions include variation in interest rates, delays in
settlement and changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

Discount rates

Insurance contract liabilities are calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at a risk free rate, plus
an illiquidity premium where applicable. Risk free rates are determined by reference to the yields of highly
liquid AAA-rated sovereign securities in the currency of the insurance contract liabilities. The illiquidity
premium is determined by reference to observable market rates. Discount rates applied for discounting of
future cash flows are listed below:

1year 3 years 5 years 10 years
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Insurance contracts issued:

AED 5.21% 595% 5.09% 4.91% 5.05% 4.69% 5.10% 4.64%

Reinsurance contracts issued:

1year 3 years 5 years 10 years
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

AED 5.21% 595% 5.09% 4.91% 5.05% 4.69% 510% 4.64%

Risk adjustment for non-financial risk

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is the compensation that the Company requites for bearing the
uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash flows of groups of insurance contracts. The risk
adjustment reflects an amount that an insurer would rationally pay to remove the uncertainty that future
cash flows will exceed the expected value amount.

The Company has estimated the risk adjustment using a confidence level (probability of sufficiency)
approach at the 65th percentile for motor and medical lines of business and 70th percentile for the others.
The Company has estimated the probability distribution of the future cash flows, and the additional amount
above the expected present value of future cash flows required to meet the target percentiles,
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5 Property and equipment
2024 2023
AED AED
Capital work in progress (Note 5.1) 311,614 120,811
Operating assets (Note 5.2) 9,301,530 11,645,602

9,613,044 11,766 413

5.1 Capital work in progress includes an amount of AED 311,614 (2023: AED 120,811) mainly towards
costs incurred on leasehold improvements and computers and office equipment, Below is the
movement of capital wotk in progress.

2024 2023
AED AED
Opening capital work in progress 120,811 791,273
Add: additions during the year 291,933 252,280
Less: capitalised during the year (101,130) (922,742)
Closing capital work in progress 311,614 120,811
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United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

6 Investment Properties
2024 2023
AED AED
Balance at the beginning of the year 46,639,999 46,783,999
Changes in fair value during the year (note 22) (86,000) (144,000)
Balance at the end of the year 46,553,999 46,639,999

The fair value of the Company’s investment properties as at 31 December 2024 has been arrived at on the
basis of valuation carried on 31 December 2024 by two independent valuers who have appropriate
qualifications and recent market experience in the valuation properties in the United Arab Emirates.

The fair value was determined based on the discounted cashflow method and income capitalisation method.
In capitalisation of net income method, the market rentals of all lettable units are assessed by reference to
the rentals achieved in the lettable units as well as other lettings of similar property in the area. The
capitalisation rate adopted is made by reference to the yield rates observed by the valuers of similar
properties in the locality and adjusted based on the valuer’s knowledge of the factors specific to respective
propetties. Discounted cashflow method detives value by discounting future cash flows based on prevailing

micro market conditions in the vicinity of the asset.

The fair values of all the investment properties were determined based on unobservable inputs (i.e. level 3).

The rental income and operating expenses relating to these properties ate as follows:

2024 2023
AED AED
Rental income 2,831,133 2,594,542
Investment properties expenses (801,164) (711,482)
Net rental income 2,029,969 1,883,060
7 Financial investments

2024 2023
AED AED
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 126,972,140 113,580,481
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 154,527,065 155,987,108
281,499,205 269,567,589

Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVT'OCI)
2024 2023
AED AED
Inside UAE 126,628,956 113,233,171
Outside UAE 343,184 347,310
126,972,140 113,580,481
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7 Financial investments (continued)

Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) (continued)

Movements in financial investments

The gross movements in equity investments at FVTOCL is as follows:

2024 2023

AED AED

Opening balance 113,580,481 122,132,728
Purchased during the year 58,918,371 66,038,520
Sold during the year (65,697,701)  (86,159,802)
Changes in fair value during the year 20,170,989 11,569,035
Closing balance 126,972,140 113,580,481

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL)

2024 2023

AED AED

Unquoted equity securities — outside UAE 2,305,164 2,279,007
Unquoted mutual fund units — outside UAE 104,488,693 102,816,962
Unquoted investments in real estate fund — outside UAE 47,733,208 50,891,139
154,527,065 155,987,108

The gross movements in investments at FVIPL is as follows:

2024 2023

AED AED

Opening balance 155,987,108 103,295,993
Purchased during the year 18,858,384 82,003,515
Sold duting the year (17,889,552)  (28,784,371)
Changes in fair value duting the year (note 22) (2,428,875) (528,029)
Closing balance 154,527,065 155,987,108

Financial investments amounting to AED 71,428,571 are under lien against the Bank botrowing (note 19)

8 Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordetly
transaction between matket participants at the measurement date. As such, differences can arise between
book values and the fair value estimates. Undetlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the
Company is a going concern without any intention or requirement to materially curtail the scale of its
operation ot to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

Fair value of the Company's financial assets that are measnred at fair value on recurring basis.
Table in the next page provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

Level 7:  Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measutement is observable, either directly or indirectly.

Leve/ 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measutement is unobservable.

31



United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

8 Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Valnation
2024 2023 Fair value techniques
AED AED hierarchy  and key inputs

Financial asset at FI7TOCI
Quoted bid
Quoted investments 126,972,140 113,580,481 Level 1 prices in an
active matket

Financial asset at F17TPL

Net assets
Unquoted investments 154,527,065 155,987,108 Level 3 valuation
method

There are no financial liabilides which should be measured at fair value and accordingly no disclosure is
made in the above table. There were no transfers between levels during the year (2023: nil).
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9 Insurance and reinsurance contracts

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for insurance contracts issued showing the liability for remaining coverage and

the liability for incurred claims

The roll-forward of the net asset or liability for insurance contracts issued, showing the liability for remaining coverage and the
liability for incurred claims, is disclosed in the table below:

Contracts measured under the PAA

2024

Insurance contract liabilities as at 1 Jaouary

Insurance revenue
Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other expenses
Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows
Losses on onerous contracts
Changes to liabilities for incurred claims
Insurance service result
Insurance finance expense

Total changes in the statement of profit or loss
Cash flows

Premiums received

Claims and other expenses paid

Insurance acquisition cash flows

Total cash flows

Insurance contract liabilities as at

31 December

2023

Insurance contract liabilities as at 1 January

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses

Incurred claims and other expenses
Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows
Losses on onerous contracts

Changes to liabilities for incurred claims
Insurance service result

Insurance finance expense

Total changes in the statement of profit or loss
Cash flows

Premiums received

Claims and other expenses paid

Insurance acquisition cash flows

Total cash flows

Net insurance contract liabilities as at
31 December

Liabilities for remaining Liabilities for incurred
coverage claims
Estimates of
Excluding the present
loss Loss value of future Risk

component component cash flows  adjustment Total
AED AED AED AED AED
126,274,391 20,876,146 304,650,502 13,697,488 465,498,527
(606,962,559) - = - (606,962,559)
130,921,098 6,916,563 762,389,495 19,218,453 919,445,609
- - 681,905,703 30,413,383 712,319,086
130,921,098 - - - 130,921,098
- 6,916,563 - - 6,916,562
- - 80,483,792  (11,194,930) 69,288,862
(476,041,461) 6,916,563 762,389,495 19,218,453 312,483,050
- - 6,711,379 - 6,711,379
(476,041,461) 6,916,563 769,100,874 19,218,453 319,194,429
624,758,186 - - - 624,758,186
- (570,064,587) - (570,064,587)
(143,853,876) - - - (143,853,876)
480,904,310 - (570,064,587) - (89,160,277)
131,137,240 27,792,709 503,686,789 32,915,941 695,532,679
48,545,673 11,492,744 264,488,072 16,003,261 340,529,750
(566,162,066) - - B (566,162,066)
107,194,291 9,383,402 446,322,380 (2,305,773) 560,594,300
- - 441,078,140 12,883,733 453,961,873
107,194,291 - - - 107,194,291
- 9,383,402 - - 9,383,402
- - 5,244,240  (15,189,5006) (9,945,266)
(458,967,775) 9,383,402 446,322,380 (2,305,773) (5,567,766)
- - 6,773,662 - 6,773,662
(458,967,775) 9,383,402 453,096,042 (2,305,773) 1,205,896
654,946,688 - - - 654,946,688
- - (412,933,612) - (412,933,612)
(118,250,195) - 2 - (118,250,195)
536,696,493 - (412,933,612) - 123,762,881
126,274,391 20,876,146 304,650,502 13,697,488 465,498,527

33



United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

9 Insurance and reinsurance conftracts {(continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage and the

amounts recoverable on incurred claims

Contracts measured under the PAA

2024 Assets for remaining Amounts recoverable on
caverage incurred claims
Estimates of
the present
Excluding loss Loss value of
recovery recovery future Risk
component component cash flows  adjustment Total
AED AED AED AED AED
Reinsurance contract assets as at 1 January 15,456,330 7,439,234 179,427,908 10,477,701 212,801,173
Reinsurance contract liabilities as at 1 January (7,576,498) - 2,117,884 16,209 (5,442,405)
Net reinsurance contract assets 7,879,832 7,439,234 181,545,792 10,493,910 207,358,768
Allocation of reinsurance premiums (324,743,039) - - - (324,743,039)
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers for incurred claims - 4,751,925 527,479,944 16,395,275 548,627,144
Amounts recoverable for incurred claims and other
expenses - - 426,334,960 30,669,956 457,004,917
Loss-recovery on onerous undetlying contracts and
adjustments - 4,751,925 - - 4,751,925
Changes to amounts recoverable for incurred claims - - 101,144,984 (14,274,682) 86,870,302
Net income or expense from reinsurance contracts (324,743,039) 4,751,925 527,479,944 16,395,275 223,884,105
Reinsurance finance income = = 4,815,609 = 4,815,609
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss (324,743,039) 4,751,925 532,295,555 16,395,275 228,699,716
Cash flows
Premiums paid 363,944,799 - - - 363,944,799
Amounts received - - (352,945,692) - (352,945,692)
Tatal cash flows 363,944,799 - (352,945,692) - 10,999,107
Net reinsurance contract assets/(liabilities) as at
31 December
Reinsurance contract assets as at 31 December 61,007,938 12,050,543 350,915,970 26,888,269 450,862,720
Reinsurance contract liabilities as at 31 December (13,926,347) 140,615 9,979,685 915 (3,805,132)
Net reinsurance contract assets as at 31 December 47,081,591 12,191,158 360,895,655 26,889,184 447,057,588
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9 Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage and the
amounts recoverable on incurred claims (continued)

Contracts measured under the PAA (continued)

2023

Reinsurance contract assets as at 1 Januaty
Reinsurance contract liabilities as at 1 January
Net reinsurance contract (labilides)/assets

Allocation of reinsurance premiums
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers for incurred claims
Amounts recoverable for incurred claims and other

expenses

Loss-recovery on onerous underlying contracts and
adjustments
Changes to amounts recoverable for incurred claims
Net income or expense from reinsurance contracts held
Reinsurance finance income
Total changes in the statement of comprehensive
income
Cash flows
Premiums paid
Amounts received
Total cash flows
Net reinsurance contract assets/ (liabilities) as at
31 December
Reinsurance contract assets as at 31 December
Reinsurance contract liabilities as at 31 December
Net reinsurance contract assets as at 31 December

Assets for remaining coverage

Amounts recoverable on
incurred claims

Estimates of

the present
Excluding loss  Loss value of
tecovery recovery future Risk

component component cash flows adjustment Toral
AED AED AED AED AED
(19,697,040) 3,276,163 157,183,982 9,703,745 150,466,850
(8,600,444) " 1,032,589 67,253 (7,500,602)
(28,297,484) 3,276,163 158,216,571 9,770,998 142,966,248
(311,311,919) - - (311,311,919)
- 4,163,071 268,225,803 722912 273,111,786
- - 269,343,124 11,804,207 281,147 331
- 4,163,071 - - 4,163,071
- - (1,117,321)  (11,081,295) (12,198,616)
(311,311,919) 4,163,071 268,225,803 722912 (38,200,133)
- - 4,701,969 - 4,701,969
(311,311,919 4,163,071 272,927,772 722,912 (33,498,164)
347,489,235 - - - 347,489,235
- - (249,598,551) - (249,598,551)
347,489,235 - (249,598,551) - 97,890,684
15,456,330 7,439,234 179,427,908 10,477,701 212,801,173
(7,576,498) . 2,117,884 16,209 (5,442,405)
7,879,832 7,439,234 181,545,792 10,493,910 207,358,768
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United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

10 Prepayments and other assets

2024 2023

AED AED

Acctued income 5,283,022 2,522,266
Advances to employees 1,258,708 868,554
Security deposits 289,068 343,102
Prepayments 65,869 634,328
Othets 423,033 171,042

7,319,700 4,539,292

11 Statutory Deposits

As at 31 December 2024, deposit of AED 10,000,000 (2023: AED 10,000,000) has been placed with one
of the Company’s bank account in accordance with UAE Federal Law No. 48 of 2023. This deposit has
been pledged to the bank as security against a guarantee issued by the bank in favor of the Central Bank of
the United Arab Emirates (“CBUAE”) for the same amount. This deposit cannot be withdrawn without
prior approval of the Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates and bears an interest rate of 5% per annum
(2023: 4.3% per annum).

12 Bank balances and cash
Bank balances and cash comprise the following statement of financial position amounts:

All balances are held in United Arab Emirates. The annual rate of fixed deposits is 4.30% to 4.35% (2023:
4.9% to 5.00%) per annum.

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year as shown in the statement of cash flows can be reconciled
to the related items in the financial items in the statement of financial position as follows:

2024 2023
AED AED
Bank balances and cash 21,971,602 76,228,358
Bank deposits with original maturity over 3 months (3,000,000)  (13,000,000)
Cash and cash equivalents 18,971,602 63,228,358
13 Share capital

2024 2023
AED AED

Issued and fully paid:
160,000,000 ordinary shares of AED 1 each 160,000,000 160,000,000

14 Statutory reserve

In accordance with the UAE Federal Decree Law No. 32 of 2021, the Company has established a statutory
reserve by appropriation of 10% of the Company’s net profit for each year which will be increased until the
reserve equals 50% of the share capital. This resetve is not available for distribution, except as stipulated by the
Law. During the year no amount was transferred to the reserve as the Company incutred loss for the year ended
31 December 2024 (2023: nil).
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15 General reserve

The general reserve is established through transfers from profit for the year as recommended by the Board
of Directors’ and approved by the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. The reserve is distributable
based on a recommendation by the Board of Directors’, approved by a Shareholders’ resolution. During
the year and last year, no transfers were made to general reserves.

16 Reinsurance reserve

In accotdance with Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates’ Board of Directors’ Decision No. 23 of
2019, Article 34, an amount of AED 1,338,960 (2023: AED 1,812,650) based on the reinsurance share of
premium at a rate of 0.5% was transferred from retained earnings to reinsurance reserve, The reserve is not
available for distribution and will not be disposed of without prior approval from Central Bank of the
United Arab Emirates,

17 Basic and diluted loss per share
2024 2023
AED AED
Loss for the year after tax (64,403,7306) (17,431,932)
Weighted average number of shares 160,000,000 160,000,000
Loss per shate (0.403) (0.109)

Basic and diluted loss pet share are calculated by dividing the loss for the year after tax by the weighted
average number of shares during the year. Diluted earnings per share is equivalent to basic eatnings per
share as the Company did not issue any new instrument that would impact earnings per shate when
executed.

18 Employees’ end of service benefits
Movements in the provision recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:
2024 2023
AED AED
Provision as at 1 January 4,484,362 4,149,775
Provided duting the year 1,170,498 978,192
End of setvice benefits paid (1,963,627) (643,605)
Provision as at 31 December 3,691,233 4,484,362
19 Bank borrowing
2024 2023
AED AED
Bank borrowing 20,000,000 -

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company enteted into a term loan facility with a Bank in
United Arab Emirates for an amount of AED 50,000,000, out of which AED 20,000,00 has been drawn as
of the reporting date. The facility cartied an effective interest rate of 3-month EIBOR + 0.65% and penal
interest of 2% per annum,

Bank botrowing is secured by assignment of custody/lien over the financial investments amounting to
AED 71,428,571. Bank borrowings are utilised for Company’s operational activities.

38



United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

20 Lease liabilities

The Company has leases for the office premises within UAE as at 31 December 2024., each lease is reflected
on the statement of financial position as a right to use asset and a lease liability. The Company classifies its
right to use assets in a consistent manner to its property and equipment. Future minimum lease payments

as at 31 December 2024 were as mentioned below:

Within 1 year 1-5 yeats After 5 years Total
AED AED AED AED

31 December 2024
Lease payments 1,621,726 4,599,209 - 6,220,935
Finance charges (262,776) (317,746) - (580,522)
Net present values 1,358,950 4,281,463 - 5,640,413
Within 1 year 1-5 years After 5 yeats Total
AED AED AED AED

31 December 2023
Lease payments 1,939,136 6,170,841 - 8,109,977
Finance charges (341,949) (580,523) - (922,472)
Net present values 1,597,187 5,590,318 - 7,187,505
21 Other payables
2024 2023
AED AED
Accrued expenses 7,802,747 6,004,379
VAT payables 3,735,464 6,053,024
Rental deposits 1,529,570 1,648,465
Other payables 4,056,207 3,039,581
17,123,988 16,745,449
22 Insurance service expense

2024 2023
AED AED
Incurred claims and other expenses 712,319,086 453,961,873
Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows 130,921,098 107,194,291
Losses on onerous contracts 6,916,562 9,383,402
Changes to liabilities for incurred claims 69,288,863 (9,945,266)
Insurance service expense 919,445,609 560,594,300

Social contributions during the year ended 31 December 2024 amounted to AED 154,325 (31 December

2023: AED 185,848).
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23 Total investment income and net insurance financial result
2024 2023

AED AED
Rental income from investment properties 2,831,133 2,594,542
Losses on revaluation of investment properties (note 6) (86,000) (144,000)
Investment properties expenses (801,164) (711,482)
Income from investment property - net 1,943,969 1,739,060
Interest on fixed deposits 869,724 1,379,056
(Loss) / gain on disposal of investments at FVTPL (917,258) 491,846
Dividend income - investments at FVTOCI 9,069,082 5,224,696
Dividend income - investments at FVTPL 4,245,970 4,565,661
Interest income on bonds 5,755,142 5,079,042
Other investment expenses (76,998) (241,218)
Loss in fair value of investments at FVIPL (note 7) (2,428,875) (528,029)
Net investment income 18,460,756 17,710,114
Insurance and reinsurance finance income and expense

Motor Employee
31 December 2024 Commercial Consumer benefits Total
AED AED AED AED

Insurance finance expenses for
insurance contracts issued

Interest accreted to insurance contracts

using current financial assumptions (4,078,071)  (1,955,051) (1,775,323) (7,808,445)

Due to changes in interest rates and other

financial assumptons 806,187 192,258 98,621 1,097,066
Total insurance finance expenses for '
insurance contracts issued (3,271,884)  (1,762,793) (1,676,702) (6,711,379)
Represented by:

Amounts recognised in profit or loss (3,271,884)  (1,762,793) (1,676,702) (6,711,379)
Reinsurance finance income from
reinsurance contracts held

Interest accreted to reinsurance contracts

using current financial assumptions 3,844,259 584,434 1,304,381 5,733,074

Due to changes in interest rates and other

financial assumptions (732,585) (107,333) (77,547) (917,465)
Total reinsurance finance income from
reinsurance contracts held 3,111,674 477,101 1,226,834 4,815,609
Represented by:

Amounts recognised in profit ot loss 3,111,674 477,101 1,226,834 4,815,609
Net insurance finance expense (160,210)  (1,285,692) (449,868)  (1,895,770)
Represented by:

Amounts recognised in profit or loss (160,210)  (1,285,692) (449,868)  (1,895,770)
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23 Total investment income and net insurance financial result (continued)

Insurance and reinsurance finance income and expense (continued)

Motor  Employee
31 December 2023 Commercial Consumer benefits Total
AED AED AED AED
Insurance finance expenses for insurance
contracts issued
Interest accreted to insurance contracts

using current financial assumptions (4,074,088) (1,996,748) (907,033) (6,977,869)

Due to changes in interest rates and other

financial assumptions 121,672 40,480 42,055 204,207
Total insurance finance expenses for insurance
contracts issued (3,952,416)  (1,956,268) (864,978)  (6,773,662)
Represented by:

Amounts recognised in profit or loss 3,952 416 1,956,268 864,978 6,773,662

Reinsurance finance income from reinsurance
contracts held
Interest accreted to reinsurance contracts

using current financial assumptions 3,941,338 282,315 623,013 4,846,666

Due to changes in interest rates and other

financial assumptions (99,756) (11,985) (32,956) (144,697)
Total reinsurance finance income from
reinsurance contracts held 3,841,582 270,330 590,057 4,701,969
Represented by:

Amounts recognised in profit or loss 3,841,582 270,330 590,057 4.701,969
Net insurance finance expense (110,834)  (1,685,938) (274,921)  (2,071,693)
Represented by:

Amounts recognised in profit or loss (110,834)  (1,685,938) (274,921)  (2,071,693)

24 Related party balances and transactions

Related parties represent, major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Company,
and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such patties. The pricing policies
and terms of these transactions ate approved by the Company’s management. At the end of the year,
significant balances due from related parties are as follows:

2024 2023
AED AED

Affiliates of major shareholders:
Insurance contract liabilities (1,961,250) (5,207,946)
Liability for incurred claims (3,842,960) (5,142,571)
Other receivables 597,894 548,966
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24 Related party balances and transactions (continued)

Transactions

During the year, the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties:

Affiliates of major shareholders:
Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses

Net payment to reinsurance brokers

Employee benefits to key management personnel

25 Segment Information

2024 2023

AED AED
10,502,116 19,729,069
(31,877,421)  (29,718,178)
(6,069,266)  (12,004,382)
9,048,794 8,593,250

For management purposes, the Company is organized into three business segments commercial, consumer
and employee benefits (medical and group Life). The commercial insurance segment comptises
engineering, marine, propetty, liability and casualty and consumer segment comptises of motot, pet, travel
and others. These segments are the basis on which the Company repotts its primary segment information.
Segment-wise information is disclosed below:

31 December 2024

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses

Insurance service result before
reinsurance contracts held

Amounts recoverable from reinsurance

Allocation of reinsurance premiums

Net expenses from reinsurance
contracts held

Insurance Service Result

31 December 2023

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses

Insurance service result before
reinsurance contracts held

Amounts recoverable from reinsurance

Allocation of reinsurance premiums

Net expenses from reinsurance contracts
held

Insurance Setvice Result

Employee
Commercial Consumer benefits Total
AED AED AED AED
140,478,183 211,295,725 255,188,651 606,962,559
(387,420,091) (301,535,362) (230,490,156) (919,445,609)
(246,941,908)  (90,239,637) 24,698,495 (312,483,050)
313,715,740 107,759,966 127,151,438 548,627,144
(105,362,292) (64,765,995) (154,614,752) (324,743,039)
208,353,448 42,993,971 (27,463,314) 223,884,105
(38,588,460)  (47,245,666) (2,764,819)  (88,598,945)
Employee

Commetecial Consumer benefits Total
AED AED AED AED
139,535,685 115,970,506 310,655,875 566,162,066
(96,810,884) (144,246,223) (319,537,193) (560,594,300)
42,724,801 (28,275,717) (8,881,318) 5,567,766
52,968,854 22157,033 197,985,899 273,111,786
(91,988,382)  (22,850,640) (196,472,897) (311,311,919)
(39,019,528) (693,607) 1,513,002 (38,200,133)
3,705,273 (28,969,324) (7,368,316) (32,632,367)
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The following is an analysis of the Company’s assets, liabilities and equity classified by segment:

31 December 2024
Employee
Commercial Consumer benefits Total
AED AED AED AED
Insutrance contract liabilities (357,402,988) (151,610,693) (186,518,997) (695,532,679)
Reinsurance contract assets 309,479,161 69,160,039 72,223,520 450,862,720
Reinsutance contract liabilities (2,630,252) (55,138) (1,119,742) (3,805,132)
31 December 2023
Employee
Commetcial Consumer benefits Total
AED AED AED AED
Insurance contract liabilities (162,328,214) (173,513,014) (129,657,299) (465,498,527)
Reinsurance contract assets 134,619,311 43,258,138 34,923,724 212,801,173
Reinsurance contract liabilities : (1,776,586) (3,665,819) (5,442,405)
26 Gross Written Premiums

Details relating to gross written contributions are disclosed below to comply with the requitements of
CBUAE and are not calculated as per the requirements of IFRS 17.

All types of
Life Fund Medical Property & business
2024 Insurance Accumulation Insurance Liability = combined
AED AED AED AED AED
Direct written

premiums 1,544,537 - 230,561,421 340,018,165 572,124,123
Assumed business: = -
Foteign - - - - -
Local - - - 1,782,152 1,782,152
Total assumed business - - - 1,782,152 1,782,152

Total gross written
premiums 1,544,537 - 230,561,421 341,800,317 573,906,275
All types of
Life Fund Medical  Property & business
2023 Insurance  Accumulation Insurance Liability combined
AED AED AED AED AED

Direct written

premiums 2,865,754 - 320,196,528 326,460,405 649,522,687

Assumed business:
Foteign - - - 205,803 205,803
Local - - - 3,828,042 3,828,042
Total assumed business - - - 4,033,845 4.033,845

Total gross written
premiums 2,865,754 - 320,196,528 330,494,250 653,556,532
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27 Contingencies and commitments
Contingent Habilities
2024 2023
AED AED
Letters of guarantee 11,114,948 11,074,948

Letters of guarantee includes AED 10 million (31 December 2023: AED 10 million) issued in favour of the
CBUAE. The Company in common with the significant majority of insutes, is subject to litigation in normal
course of its business. The Company, based on independent legal advice, does not expect that the outcome
of these court cases will have a material impact on the Company’s financial performance or financial
position.

28 Risk management

(a) Governance framework

The ptimary objective of the Company’s dsk and financial management framewotk is to protect the
Company’s shareholders from events that hinder the sustainable achievement of financial performance
objectives, including failing to exploit opportunities. Key management recognises the critical importance of
having efficient and effective risk management systems in place.

The Company’s risk management function is carried out by the board of directors, with its associated
committees. This is supplemented with a clear organisational structure with documented delegated
authorities and responsibilities from the board of directors to the Chief Executive Officer and senior

managers.

The boatd of directors meets regularly to approve any commercial, regulatory and organisational decisions.
The Chief Executive Officer under the authority delegated from the board of directors defines the
Company’s risk and its interpretation, limit structure to ensure the appropriate quality and diversificatdon
of assets, align underwriting and reinsurance strategy to the corporate goals, and specify reporting
requirements.

The Company’s current enterprise risk management framework is formally documented and divided into
three phases. The Company’s enterprise risk management framework is established to identify and analyse
the key risks faced by the Company’s to set appropriate controls and manage those risks, As part of the
risks identification process, the Company uses risk based capital model to assess the capital requirement
and uses stress analysis to apply changes to capital. The Company’s risk appetite is derived from the changes
to capital.

(b) Capital management framework

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to comply with the regulatory requirements
in the UAE and to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital ratio in order to supportt its business and
maximise shareholder value,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shates. Section 2 of the Financial Regulations for
Insurance Companies (the “Regulations”) issued by the Central Bank of UAE identifies the required
solvency margin to be held in addition to insurance liabilities. The solvency margin must be maintained at
all times throughout the year. The Company has incorporated in its policies and procedures the necessary
tests to ensure continuous and full compliance with these Regulations. The table below summarises the
Minimum Capital Requirement, Minimum Guarantee Fund and Solvency Capital Requitement of the
Company and the total capital held to meet these solvency margins as defined in the Regulations.
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28 Risk management (continued)

(b) Capital management framework (continued)

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

AED AED
Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) 100,000,000 100,000,000
Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) 161,168,000 108,647,062
Minimum Guarantee Fund (MGF) 72,961,000 60,561,719
Basic Own Funds 6,089,000 103,509,027
MCR Solvency Margin (Deficit)/ Surplus (93,911,000) 3,509,027
SCR Solvency Margin Deficit (155,079,000) (5,138,035)
MGF Solvency margin (Deficit)/ Surplus (66,872,000) 42,947 309

As of 31 December, the Company had a SCR Solvency Margin Deficit of AED 155.1 million as compared
to the SCR capital requirements of AED 161.2 million. The Company will submit a detailed solvency
recovery plan to the Central Bank of UAE to restore the solvency position.

(c) Regulatory framework

Regulators are primarily interested in protecting the rights of the policyholders and monitor them closely
to ensutre that the Company is satisfactotily managing affairs for their benefit. At the same time, the
regulators ate also interested in ensuting that the Company maintains an appropriate solvency position to
meet unforeseen liabilities arising from economic shocks or natural disasters. The operations of the
Company are also subject to regulatory requirements within the jurisdiction where it operates. Such
regulations not only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities, but also impose certain restrictive
provisions (e.g. capital adequacy) to minimise the risk of'default and insolvency on the part of the insurance
companies to meet unforeseen liabilities as these arise,

(d) Asset liability management (ALM) framework

Financial risks atise from open positions in interest rate, cutrency and equity products, all of which are
exposed to general and specific market movements. The Company manages these positions to achieve long-
term investment returns in excess of its obligations under insurance contracts. The principal technique of
the Company’s ALM is to match assets to the liabilities arising from insurance contracts by reference to the
type of benefits payable to contract holders. The Company actively monitors the ALM to ensute in each
period sufficient cash flow is available to meet liabilities arising from insurance contracts. The Company
regularly monitors the financial risks associated with the Company’s other financial assets and liabilities not
directly associated with insurance liabilities. The risks faced by the Company and the way these tisks are
mitigated by management are summatised below.

2BA Insurance risk

The principal tisk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit
payments or the timing thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims,
severity of claims, actual benefits paid and subsequent development of long-term claims, Therefore, the
objective of the Company is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large pottfolio of insurance contracts. The
variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy
guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements.
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28 Risk management (continued)

28BA  Insurance risk (continued)

Frequency and amounts of claims

The frequency and amounts of claims can be affected by several factors. The Company underwrites mainly
medical, property, motor, marine, fire, engineering and general accident risks. These are regarded as short-
term insurance contracts as claims are normally advised and settled within one year of the insured event
taking place. This helps to mitigate insurance tisk.

Property

Property insurance is designed to compensate contract holders for damage suffered to properties or for the
value of property lost. Contract holders could also receive compensation for the loss of earnings caused by
the inability to use the insured properties. For propetty insurance contracts the main risks are fire and
business interruption. In recent years the Company has only underwritten policies for propetrties containing
fire detection equipment. These contracts are underwritten by tefetence to the replacement value of the
properties and contents insured. The cost of rebuilding properties and obtaining replacement contents and
the time taken to restatt operations which leads to business interruptions are the main factors that influence
the level of claims. The Company has reinsurance cover for such damage to limit losses for any individual
claim to AED 1,470,000 (2023: AED 1,470,000).

Moror

Motor insurance is designed to compensate contract holders for damage suffered to their vehicles or liability
to third parties arising through accidents. Contract holders could also receive compensation for the fire or
theft of their vehicles. For motor contracts the main tisks are claims for death and bodily injury and the
replacement or repair of vehicles. The Company has reinsurance cover for such claims to limit losses for
any individual claim to AED 300,000 (2023: AED 300,000). The level of court awards for deaths and to
injured parties and the replacement costs of motor vehicles are the key factors that influence the level of
claims.

Marine

Marine insurance is designed to compensate contract holders for damage and liability arising through loss
or damage to marine craft and accidents at sea resulting in the total or partial loss of cargos. For marine
insurance the main risks are loss or damage to matine craft and accidents resulting in the total ot partial
loss of cargoes. The underwriting strategy for the marine class of business is to ensure that policies are well
diversified in terms of vessels and shipping routes covered. The Company has reinsurance to limit losses
for any individual claim to AED 1,470,000 (2023: AED 1,470,000).

Medical
Medical insurance is designed to compensate the contract holders for medical costs. For medical insurance,

the main risks are illness and related healthcare costs. The Company generally does not offer medical
insurance to walk-in customers. Medical insurance is generally offered to corporate customers with large
population to be covered under the policy.

Reinsurance risk

In common with other insurance companies, in order to minimise financial exposure arising from large
insurance claims, the Company, in the normal course of business, enters into arrangements with other
parties for reinsurance purposes. Such reinsurance arrangements provide for greater diversification of
business, allow management to control exposure to potential losses arising from large tisks, and provide
additional capacity for growth. A significant portion of the reinsurance is affected under treaty, facultative
and excess of loss reinsurance contracts.

The Company is exposed to a range of financial tisks through its financial assets, financial liabilities,
reinsurance assets and insurance liabilities. In particular, the key financial risk is that in the long-term its
investment proceeds are not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance contracts. The
most important components of this financial risk are market risk (which includes foreign currency risk,
equity and debt price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and operational risk.
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28B Financial risk

The Company’s principal financial instruments include financial assets and financial liabilities which
comprise financial investments (at fair value through profit or loss and other comprehensive income),
receivables arising from insurance and reinsurance contracts, statutory deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other payables, and re-insurance balance payables. The Company does not enter into derivative
transactions.

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are market risk credit risk, liquidity risk,
foreign currency risk and interest rate tisk. The boatd reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these tisks and they are summatised below:

Marker risk

Market risk is the risk the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. The Company’s market risks may arise from open positions in (a) foreign
currencies and (b) interest bearing assets andequity, to the extent they are exposed to general and specific
market movements. Management sets limits on the exposure to currency and interest rate risk that may be
acceptable, which are monitored on a regular basis.

Market rsk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis. There has been no change to the Company’s
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and measutes the risk.

Foreign currency risk

There are no significant exchange rate risks as all monetary assets and monetary liabilities are denominated
in Arab Emirates Dirhams, or US Dollars to which the Dirham is fixed.

Management believes that there is a minimal risk of significant losses due to exchange rate fluctuations and
consequently the Company has not hedged its foreign currency balances.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the finance income or
finance cost of the Company. The Company is not significantly exposed to interest rate risk on investments
in bonds and term deposits since they carry fixed interest rates. As such, the Company’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The Company
generally manages to minimise the interest rate risk by closely monitoring the market interest rates and
investing in those financial assets in which such risk is expected to be minimal.

The Company is exposed to interest rate tisk on:

(i) Liability for incurred claims; and

(ii) Asset for incurred claims.

The tables in the next page shows the impact of change in risk adjustment and discounting on liability for
incurred claims and assets for incurred claims:
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28B

Financial risk

Interest rate risk (continued)

31 December 2024

Risk Adjustment

5% increase

5% decrease

Discounting

0.5% increase

0.5% decrease

31 December 2023

Risk adjustment

5% increase

5% decrease

Discounting

0.5% increase

0.5% decrease

Impacton Impact on profit Impacton Impact on equity
profit gross of netof  equity gross net of
reinsurance reinsurance of reinsurance teinsurance
AED AED AED AED
1,645,797 301,338 1,645,797 301,338
(1,645,797) (301,338) (1,645,797) (301,338)
(1,223,443) (212,964) (1,223,443) (212,964)
1,235,716 215,074 1,235,716 215,074
n profit  Impact on profit Impacton
gross of netof cquitygross of  Impact on equity
reinsuranc teinsurance reinsurance  net of reinsurance
AED AED AED AED
684,874 160,179 684,874 160,179
(684,874) (160,179) (684,874) (160,179)
(801,463) (203,399) (801,463) (203,399)
809,521 205,245 809,521 205,245
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28 Risk management (continued)
28b Financial risk (continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Company.

Key areas where the Company is exposed to credit tisk are:

reinsurance contract assets;

° amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims alteady paid;
e amounts due from insurance contract holders;

L amounts due from insurance intermediaties;

° amounts due from other insurance companies;

L investments in debt instruments;

o cash and cash equivalents excluding cash in hand; and

o fixed deposits

The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating
the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties
are continuously monitored, and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved
counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are teviewed and approved by
Management annually. A default on a financial asset is when the counterpasty fails to make contractual
payments within 90 days of when they fall due.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not, however, discharge the Company’s liability as
primary insurer. If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason, the Company remains liable for the
payment to the policyholder. The creditworthiness of reinsurers is considered on an annual basis by
reviewing their financial strength ptior to finalisation of any contract.

The Company maintains records of the payment history for significant contract holders with whom it
conducts regular business. The exposure to individual counterparties is also managed by other mechanisms,
such as the right of offset where counterparties are both debtors and creditors of the Company.
Management information reported to the Company includes details of provisions for impairment on
insurance and other receivables and subsequent wtite-offs.

Exposures to individual policyholders and groups of policyholdets are mitigated by ongoing credit
evaluation of their financial condition. Where there exists significant exposute to individual policyholders,
or homogenous groups of policyholders, a financial analysis equivalent to that conducted for reinsurers is
carried out by the Company.

The cattying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which is net of impairment
losses, represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

The Company applied the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses, which uses a
lifetime expected impairment provision. The Company determines the expected credit losses on these items
by using a provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss experience based on the past due status
of the debtors, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions.

The table below presents an analysis of bank balances and fixed deposits with original maturity of less than
three months by rating agency designation at the end of the reporting period based on Fitch’s rating or its
equivalent for the main banking relationships:
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28b Financial risk (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

A+
A-

A
AA-
B

BB
BBB+

Liquaidity risk

As at 31 December

2024 2023
AED AED
6,036,450 29,679,157
965,812 1,013,412
746,677 5,990,996
739,950 8,159,071
10,166,008 15,147,097
. 2,922,760

316,705 315,865
18,971,602 63,228,358

Liquidity risk refers to the tisk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its
financial liabilities at maturity date. Ultimate tesponsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
management, which has built an appropriate liquidity tisk management framework for the management of

the Company’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves by continuously monitoting forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities to ensure that

funds are available to meet its commitments for liabilities as they fall due.

The table on the next page summatises the matutity of the assets and liabilities of the Company based on

temaining contractual settlement dates.
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United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

29 Income tax

The major components of tax expense and the reconciliation of the expected tax expense based on the
UAE tax tate of 9% (2023: Nil) and the repotted tax expense in profit or loss is as follows:

Statement of profit or loss
Deferred tax:
Income tax credit on taxable losses
Statement of other comprehensive income
Deferred tax:
Net change in fair value of equity securities designated at OCI

Following is the analysis of net deferred tax asset presented in the statement of financial position:

Deferred tax asset
Deferred tax liability
Net deferred tax asset

Movement in net deferred tax asset:

Opening balance

Income tax credit on taxable losses

Net change in the fair value of equity securities designated at OCI
Closing balance

Relationship between tax income tax credit and accounting profit:

Loss before tax

Effect of items that are not considered in determining taxable loss-
net

Exempt income

Non-deductible expenses

Taxable loss
Income tax credit (applicable rate of 9%)

30 Approval of the financial statements

2024
AED

7,412,817

2023
AED

(2,058,901)

2024
AED

7,412,817
(2,058,901)

2023
AED

5,353,916

2024
AED

7,412,817
(2,058,901)

2023
AED

5,353,916

2024
AED

(71,816,553)

(10,669,437)
121,355

2023
AED

(82,364,635)

(7,412,817)

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 28 March

2025.
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